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Final results for the year ended 31 March 2025 

  

Sys Group plc (AI M:SYS), the trusted partner for cloud, cybersecuri ty, and AI  enablement, del ivering end to end solu#ons at

the intersec#on of cybersecuri ty and digi ta l  transforma#on for the UK  mid-market, today announces  i ts  audited results  for

the year ended 31 March 2025 ('FY25' or the 'Period'). 

 

Strategic and Operational Highlights 

 

SysGroup has  undergone a comprehensive transformation across  strategy, operations, and financial  architecture:  

 

·           Strategic Reposi#oning: Trans i#oned from legacy hos#ng and resale into aconsulta#ve, ful l -spectrum solu#ons

provider at the intersection of cybersecuri ty and AI.   

 

·           Enhanced Capabi l i ties : 

 

-    	Five integrated technology pi l lars  now underpin Sys Group's  offering, address ing the ful l  technology l i fecycle

for SME customers. 

-     Acquis i#on ofthe trade and assets  of Crossword Consul#ng Limited ('C C L')added deep cybersecuri ty advisory

services , expanding our reach into FTSE cl ients  and enabl ing board-level  engagement. 

 

-     Strengthened partnerships  with world leading technology providers  to del iver integrated and complementary

solutions. 

 

·           O pera#onal  Restructuring: I ntegrated prior acquis i#ons, closed two offices, and consol idated dupl icated

func#ons. Completed a ful l  data infrastructure overhaul  and drove data led ac#ons across  the service desk,

driving materia l  improvements  in service qual i ty and efficiency.  

 

·           Cultural  and Organisational  Renewal : Further strengthened the Board with the appointment of Davin Cushman and

refreshed the senior leadership team to al ign leadership capabi l i#es  with the Group's  strategic direc#on. 44% of

current employees  have tenure under two years , reinforcing the cultural  shi> towards  innova#on, execu#on, and

agi l i ty.  

 

·           F inancial  Strengthening: Completed a successful£10.6m equity fundraise in June 2024, enabl ing strategic

investments .   

 

 

Financial Highlights (for the year ended 31 March 2025)  

 

 

·           Revenue: £20.5m (F Y24: £22.7m): Reduc#on driven by churn and down sel l  of managed services  contracts  and low



margin value add resale. The churn rate for F Y26 has  s ignificantly reduced with sequen#al  managed services

growth over the last two quarters .  

 

·           Gross  Margin: 48.8%(F Y24: 45.8%): I mprovement in qual i ty of revenue driven by the acquis i#on of C C L and

reduction of low margin value added resale. 

 

·           Adjusted EBITDA1: £0.9m(F Y24: £2.0m): Reduc#on driven by investment in overheads to support the strategy to

provide ful l  technology solutions.  

 

·           Gross  Cash: £8.7m (F Y24: £1.9m): Successful  £10.6m fundraise in H1, empowered the Group to make a series  of

strategic investments  to drive future growth. These included: 

 

-     £(1.8)m for the final  earnout payment relating to the Truststream Cybersecuri ty acquis i tion in FY23. 

-     £(0.7)m in capital  investment, including investment in our bespoke AI service desk platform 

-     £(0.3)m for the acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting Limited 

 

·           Net Cash Pos ition2: £3.6m (FY24: Net Debt pos ition £(3.4)m) reflects  the movements  above. 

 

Notes:  

1 Adjus te d EBITDA i s  de fi ne d a s  profi t be fore  ne t fi na nce  cos ts , ta x, de pre ci a ti on, a morti s a ti on, i mpa i rme nts , s ha re d ba s e d

pa yme nt cha rge , s ha re  s e t up cos ts  a nd a djus ti ng i te ms  

2 Ne t ca s h/(de bt) re pre s e nts  ca s h ba l a nce s  l e s s  ba nk l oa ns  a nd l e a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s  (e xcl udi ng conti nge nt cons i de ra ti on) 

 
He e ja e  Cha e  Exe cuti ve  Cha i rma n comme nte d:

 

"We have laid strong foundations for sustainable, scalable growth through strategic, operational, and financial transformation.

Our shift to a consultative, outcome-led model is gaining traction, reflected in the return to growth in managed services and

improved pipeline activity. Whilst near-term conditions remain uncertain-with cautious SME spending and elongated decision

cycles-we are stabilising our core and rebuilding customer trust. Given current visibility, we expect FY26 performance to be

broadly in line with FY25, though we remain cautiously optimistic.

Looking ahead, we are confident in our direction. Cybersecurity and AI are structural growth markets where SysGroup is well-

positioned to lead. Heightened awareness of cyber risk and accelerating AI adoption present clear opportunities to support

customers. With disciplined execution-organically and through targeted acquisitions-we are building a resilient, future-ready

organisation that delivers sustained value."

  

  
   

For further information please contact: 
  
SysGroup Plc 
Heejae Chae, Executive Chair 
Owen Phi l ips , Chief Financial  Officer 

  
  
Tel : 0333 101 9000 
  

  
Zeus Capital (Nominated Adviser and Broker) 
Jordan Warburton 
Nick Cowles  
Emma Burn
Nick Searle 

  
Tel : 0161 831 1512 

 

About us 

SysGroup plc i s  a  managed service provider of end-to-end data solutions  enabl ing us  to take our customers  on their digi ta l

transformation journey. The Group offers  an integrated set of modern technologies  that col lectively meets  our customers

end-to-end data needs including connectivi ty, cloud hosting, del ivery, analytics  and governance of customer data, as  wel l

as  a  securi ty layer for users  and appl ications. 

The Group has  offices  in, Edinburgh, London, Manchester and Newport. 

 

For more information, vis i t http://www.sysgroup.com 

 

Executive Chairman's Review



 
Introduction
When I joined the Company two years  ago, we set on a miss ion to transform SysGroup from one of 11,000 generic UK
Managed Service Providers  (MSPs) to a  trusted technology partner for UK SMEs del ivering end to end solutions  across  their
entire technology estate.
 
Based on my 20-year leadership experience of UK PLCs, I  recognised a s igni ficant market need for an advisory led
approach, that del ivers  whol istic interoperable and future-proof solutions. Technology is  now recognised at boardroom
level  as  a  cri tical  driver of bus iness  strategy, particularly with the advent of AI. The recent high profi le cybersecuri ty
incidents  have further heightened the need for active board engagement in shaping and owning the technology agenda,
making i t a  core part of their governance responsibi l i ties . 
 
The chal lenge for UK SMEs is  that most IT MSPs are highly fragmented and general ly operate a  bus iness  model  that i s
transactional , with l imited di fferentiation or value beyond service execution. At the other end of the market, the large
consulting fi rms who offer broader capabi l i ties , typical ly target large enterprises  and the publ ic sector, with pricing and
engagement models  out of reach for most SMEs.  As  a  result, many UK bus inesses  are left navigating a  confus ing landscape
of disconnected suppl iers , creating inefficiencies , overlaps  and gaps  in their technology.  Our vis ion at SysGroup is  to be
the trusted consultative advisor to SME boards  in developing and shaping their strategy and working hand in hand with the
business  to del ivery and support integrated, future-ready solutions.
 
During the past year, we have strategical ly repositioned the Company away from a structural ly decl ining bus iness  to a
solutions  provider at the intersection of two high-growth markets : cybersecuri ty and digi ta l  transformation (AI).  We have
addressed numerous legacy operational  chal lenges, laying a  strong foundation for sustainable growth.  Most importantly,
we have transformed the financial  pos ition of the bus iness , with a  s igni ficantly strengthened balance sheet and a high-
qual i ty revenue base. We are now positioned to pursue scalable, margin-accretive growth opportunities  in a  rapidly
evolving technology landscape.
 
Operational transformation
We have made meaningful  operational  improvements  to strengthen our foundation for growth. We refreshed obsolete
hardware and deployed the latest software to ensure compl iance with evolving regulatory requirements .  A complete data
overhaul  was  undertaken to make us  a  data fi rst organisation which is  essentia l  for AI readiness .  We also successful ly
integrated fragmented historical  acquis i tions, closed two offices , resulting in the consol idation of various  functions  and
created a streaml ined focused bus iness . We have establ ished a structured sales  approach enabl ing us  to present a
cohesive value proposition across  our ful l  portfol io of services .  Improving customer service and engagement was a  key
priori ty for the bus iness , address ing areas  that have been driving unsustainable levels  of customer churn. 
 
By investing in our people and implementing in-house bui l t AI tools  we have benefi tted from improved service levels  with
an increase in the resolved tickets  per engineer of 30.1%.   Most importantly our Net Promoter Score (NPS) improved from 8
in August 2024 to 15 in June 2025.  These efficiencies  were also achieved whi lst reducing our service desk headcount by
33%.  The net impact of customer churn on our FY25 revenue was £(1.7)m in overal l  down sel l .  However, the current churn
run rate is  now s igni ficantly below last year's , reflecting the early pos itive impact of our enhanced retention ini tiatives
with the majori ty of our top accounts  renewing their contracts .    
 
We recognise that our success  is  bui l t on the qual i ty of our people. We have completed the refreshment of our Board
ensuring the relevant ski l l  set in strategy and governance and reconsti tuted our leadership team to reflect the dynamic
technology and market environment.  Across  the bus iness  we have driven cultural  change anchored to our core values  of
learning, integri ty, kindness  and entrepreneurship.  Today, 44% of our employees  have tenure of two years  or less , a  clear
indication of the fresh talent and renewed energy propel l ing our transformation.
 
Strategic transformation
During the past year, s igni ficant progress  has  been made in transforming SysGroup from a traditional  hosting provider to a
trusted, ful l  spectrum technology solutions  provider. This  transformation has  been underpinned by a  clear strategic focus
on bui lding core capabi l i ties  that del iver meaningful  outcomes for our customers. We have defined five key technology
pi l lars , that form the foundation of our end-to-end solutions, address ing customers ' cri tical  needs  across  their IT
landscape.  We have strengthened our existing platforms in hosting, protection and connectivi ty whi lst s trategical ly
investing to develop our expertise in AI, cybersecuri ty and cloud services , these being areas  of s igni ficant market demand
and future potentia l  growth.
 
In November 2024, we completed the acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting (CCL) for a  total
cons ideration of £438,000, compris ing an ini tia l  cash cons ideration of £311,000 and a deferred payment of £127,000
which has  recently been settled.  For the 12 months  ending 30 September 2024, CCL generated unaudited revenues of ci rca
£2.4m with more than 75% of revenues recurring. The bus iness  is  a  recognised leader in cybersecuri ty consulting, offering
special ised services  such as  vi rtual  CISO ('vCISO') support and Penetration Testing to medium and large enterprises . This
acquis i tion s igni ficantly elevated our go-to-market model , enabl ing us  to engage directly at C-suite and board level . As  a
result, SysGroup now operates  as  a  strategic partner rather than merely a  technical  suppl ier, shaping top-down technology
and risk management agendas. By participating in our cl ients ' long-term strategic planning, we are better pos itioned to
des ign integrated, future-proof solutions  a l igned to their bus iness  objectives .   Additional ly, the acquis i tion brought a
diverse cl ient base, including FTSE 100, FTSE 250, and S&P-l is ted companies , which presents  new cross-sel l ing
opportunities  across  multiple sectors . We bel ieve that the fragmented market of MSPs represents  exci ting opportunities  to
further accelerate our growth strategy through selective acquis i tions. 
 
Our technical  s trategy is  to partner with market leading technology providers  to del iver best in class  solutions  to our
customers.  In Cybersecuri ty we have consol idated partnerships  with global  leaders  that are compl imentary to provide an
end-to-end solution.  SysGroup is  the only UK Managed Service Provider with deep expertise and certi fied partnerships
across  three of the most trusted names in Zero Trust securi ty-Zscaler, CyberArk, and Rubrik, which pos itions  us  uniquely in
the market offering whol istic and interoperable solutions.  We achieved Advanced Partner Status  with CyberArk which is
the highest level  of partnership.  We are one of only eight MSPs in the UK authorised to implement and support Zscaler
solutions.  Our recent appointment by Rubrik as  their Advanced Partner brings  data protection capabi l i ties  that are market
leading in our offering.  These partnerships  give SysGroup a distinct competitive advantage, embedding us  at the forefront
of cybersecuri ty innovation. As  Advanced Partners , we gain privi leged access  to technical  roadmaps, joint solution
development, and market development funds-enabl ing faster deployment, superior integration, and di fferentiated offerings .
Together this  pos itions  SysGroup to outpace competitors  with enterprise-grade securi ty capabi l i ties  ta i lored for SMEs,
whi lst reinforcing our role as  a  trusted, strategic advisor in an increas ingly crowded MSP landscape.  We look to repl icate
the partnership strategy across  a l l  the technology towers .

Our AI strategy has  evolved in response to the rapid acceleration and growing maturi ty of arti ficia l  intel l igence across  the
business  landscape. Whi lst the potentia l  of AI i s  now widely acknowledged, most UK SMEs continue to face structural
barriers  to adoption-including l imited understanding of practical  use cases , underdeveloped data environments , and the
need for cultural  and behavioural  change. Informed by our success  in cybersecuri ty, we have adopted a consultative,
outcome-driven approach that helps  cl ients  move beyond AI awareness  toward real , scalable impact. Through a structured
discovery process , we identi fy high-impact, s trategical ly a l igned opportunities  and work with cl ients  to enhance their
infrastructure, governance, and data maturi ty-ensuring they are not just 'AI ready,' but equipped to deploy AI solutions  that
del iver immediate and compounding bus iness  value.



Our approach is  intentional ly pragmatic. We integrate AI capabi l i ties  within cl ients ' existing technology environments ,
blending embedded features , curated off-the-shel f tools , and bespoke solutions  as  needed. These are del ivered through a
s impl i fied, uni fied interface that a l lows for central ised overs ight, reduced complexity, and confidence in scal ing multiple
use cases. We also recognise that the success  of AI hinges  on organisational  adoption, not just technical  implementation.
That's  why we help raise internal  AI l i teracy ('AIQ') and support leadership teams in embedding AI-fi rst thinking into their
culture and decis ion-making. Internal ly, we are applying this  strategy across  our own operations-most vis ibly in the
service desk and M&A integration-where early results  are a lready improving efficiency, cons istency, and customer
experience. Another important aspect of our AI strategy is  our long-term commitment to becoming an AI-enabled
organisation. We bel ieve that adopting AI across  our bus iness  operations  wi l l  del iver s igni ficant value and provide a
sustainable competitive advantage. The nature of our bus iness , with a  s igni ficant service desk component, makes  i t wel l
suited to benefi t from being AI driven, enhancing both capacity and services  qual i ty.

Our journey has  reinforced an important lesson that the adoption of AI depends on the culture as  much as  the technology.
As  a  result, we have invested heavi ly in ra is ing the organisation's  AIQ (AI awareness) through a series  of structured
presentations, tra ining sess ions, and staff engagement ini tiatives . This  cultural  investment ensures  our teams are
empowered to adopt AI-driven tools  across  a l l  functions  and pos itions  SysGroup to lead by example in responsible,
practical  AI adoption within managed services .  We have already seen s igni ficant improvement in our service desk del ivery
and efficiency metrics  in short time.  In addition, AI wi l l  play a  key role in supporting our acquis i tion strategy, enabl ing us
to integrate acquired bus inesses  more efficiently. By automating and standardis ing service del ivery and operational
workflows, we can accelerate integration, reduce disruption, and unlock synergies  more quickly, thereby ensuring a
consistent, high-qual i ty customer experience across  the enlarged group. This  reduces  trans itional  disruption and
accelerates  the real isation of synergies  from acquis i tions.

Financial transformation

The most consequentia l  transformation over the year has  been financial . Fol lowing the successful  £10.6m fundraise in H1,
we strengthened our balance sheet and deployed capital  to address  legacy chal lenges  whi lst investing in future growth.
This  enabled the strategic acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting Limited ('CCL'), s igni ficantly
enhancing our cybersecuri ty proposition and providing the framework for our AI strategy. In paral lel , we improved the
qual i ty and res i l ience of our revenue base. Whi lst overal l  revenue decl ined to £20.5m (FY24: £22.7m), gross  margin
improved to 48.8% (FY24: 45.8%), driven by the acquis i tion of CCL (which is  both gross  margin and EBITDA accretive); the
strategic reduction of low-margin Value Added Resale ('VAR') bus iness; and targeted price increases.
 
Encouragingly, we have now seen two sequentia l  increases  in managed services  revenue over the last two quarters , our
fi rst in two years .  Improved customer engagement and enhanced service offerings  s igni ficantly reduced churn and helped
arrest historic downsel l  trends, particularly as  cl ients  moved away from legacy products .  Looking ahead, we are actively
progress ing a  number of ini tiatives , including an internal  AI transformation programme, to drive operational  efficiency.
We bel ieve we now have a strong platform in place to del iver sustainable, profi table growth.

Outlook
We have made s igni ficant progress  in laying the foundation for sustainable growth - improving the qual i ty of our revenue,
enhancing our service offerings , and evolving our engagement model  to a  more consultative, value-led approach. Whi lst we
are proud of the strides  we have made, we recognise there is  s ti l l  much work to be done, particularly in regaining our
customers ' trust and embedding the new culture. Cybersecuri ty and AI, our two areas  of focus, are markets  with s igni ficant
growth potentia l . Recent high-profi le cyber incidents  have heightened awareness  of cybersecuri ty threats , creating new
opportunities  to engage with both existing and prospective customers. At the same time, the ongoing momentum behind AI
adoption strongly pos itions  SysGroup to play a  leading role in helping bus inesses  harness  this  transformative technology.

In the near term, macroeconomic and geopol i tical  uncertainties  continue to create a  more complex and unpredictable
outlook. During the fi rst quarter, we experienced a s igni ficant s lowdown of discretionary spend both in profess ional
services  and value-added resales , with customers  postponing capital  investment decis ions. Nevertheless , we saw growth in
our managed services  for the fi rst time in two years , reflecting the reduction of customer churn and downsel l . Whi lst we
are seeing a  recovery in pipel ine activi ty heading into the second quarter, we remain mindful  of the near-term environment.
Decis ion-making cycles  among SMEs continue to show s igns  of caution, particularly for discretionary or transformational
IT investments .
 
With a  strengthened financial  foundation and an expanded portfol io of capabi l i ties , SysGroup is  wel l -pos itioned to drive
through a blend of organic growth and targeted acquis i tions. These strategic ini tiatives  wi l l  deepen our expertise, expand
our addressable market, and del iver long-term value for our shareholders .
On behalf of the Board, I  would l ike to thank our employees, customers, and shareholders  for their ongoing trust and
commitment.
 
 

Heejae Chae  

Executive Chairman 

23 July 2025 

 

Chief Financial Officer's report 

 

Group statement of comprehensive income  

The Group delivered revenue of £20.50m (FY24: £22.71m), Adjusted EBITDA of £0.95m (FY24: £2.01m) and a statutory loss

before tax of £2.45m (FY24: £6.57m)  

 

The Group underwent s igni ficant financial  transformation during the year. In June 2024, we completed a £10.6m net

fundraise, s trengthening the balance sheet and enabl ing a  series  of strategic investments  to support future growth. These

included the final  payment for Truststream Securi ty Solutions  Ltd ('Truststream', our FY23 cybersecuri ty acquis i tion),

investment in our proprietary service desk AI platform, and the acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting

Ltd ('CCL'), providing us  with fi rst class  cyber consultancy capabi l i ties . 

 

These investments  supported a strategic shi ft towards  cybersecuri ty and digi ta l  transformation, and away from



These investments  supported a strategic shi ft towards  cybersecuri ty and digi ta l  transformation, and away from

structural ly decl ining hosting services  and lower margin Value Added Resale.  Whi lst this  trans ition resulted in lower

headl ine revenue for the year, i t achieved our a im of a  3% improved gross  margin %, demonstrating a  more higher qual i ty

revenue base and pos itioning the Group for sustainable growth.

 

Managed IT services  revenue of £17.70m (FY24: £18.59m) and Value Added Resale revenue of £2.81m (FY24: £4.12m)

reflected this  move towards  higher-value solution sales .  The overal l  revenue mix stands  at 86% managed IT services

(including profess ional  services) and 14% VAR (FY24: 82%:18%).  This  revised mix offers  greater revenue certainty through

its  increased base of recurring managed income. 

 
Revenue by operating
segment 

2025 2024 

£'000 £'000 % 

Managed IT Services  17,696 18,592 -5% 
Value Added Resale 2,805 4,122 -32% 

Total  20,501 22,714 -10% 

 

 

Gross  profi t was  £10.01m with a  gross  profi t % of 49% (FY24: £10.4m and 46% respectively). Gross  profi t % improved due to

margin gains  in Value Added Resale, driven by the strategic shi ft from low-margin s imple resale towards  higher-value

solutions. 

 
Gross  profi t by
operating segment 

2025 2024 

£'000 £'000 % 

Managed IT Services  9,186 9,733 -6% 
Value Added Resale 824 663 24% 

Total  10,010 10,396 -4% 

 

 
Gross  profi t % by
operating segment 

2025 2024 

£'000 £'000 % 

Managed IT Services  52% 52% - 
Value Added Resale 29% 16% +13pp 

Total  49% 46% +3pp 

 

 

Operating expenses  (before depreciation, amortisation, impairments , exceptional  i tems and share based payments) of

£9.07m were £0.68m higher than last year (FY24: £8.39m) as  the Group continued to invest in people and systems to

support our growth strategy.  

 

Adjusted EBITDA was £0.95m for the twelve months  to 31 March 2025 (FY24: £2.01m) which is  an Adjusted EBITDA margin

of 4.6% (FY24: 8.8%). The lower margin percentage reflects  the reduced revenue combined with the additional  investment in

operating overhead detai led above. 

 

The consol idated income statement includes  £0.83m (FY24: £1.83m) of exceptional  i tems: 

 

  2025 2024 
  £'000 £'000 

CEO exit and settlement - 744 
Integration and restructuring costs  420 571 

Suppl ier charges  in dispute 236 434 

M&A projects  90 194 
Fair value adjustment of contingent
consideration l iabi l i ty 

80 (117) 

Total 826 1,826 

 

 

Amortisation of intangible assets  was  £1.56m (FY24: £1.70m) in the year, of which £1.33m (FY24: £1.47m) relates  to the

amortisation of acquired intangible assets  from acquis i tions  and £0.23m (FY24: £0.22m) relates  to the amortisation of

software development and l icence costs .  

 

There was no impairment of intangible assets  in the year (FY24: £3.72m). The Managed IT Services  cash-generating unit

(CGU) goodwi l l  i s  comprised of acquis i tions  dating from 2016 to 2022. Based upon a prudent assessment of the future



performance of these acquis i tions  (being the 'Managed IT Services  CGU'), management's  view is  that the CGU is  not

impaired (FY24: impairment of £3.72m). 

 

Net finance costs  decreased in the year to £0.10m (FY24: £0.57m) due to interest received of £0.37m (FY24: £0m) on the

holding of cash reserves  relating to the fund rais ing of £10.59m net during the year.  The loan balance has  increased to 31

March 2025 of £4.77m (31 March 2024: £4.74m). Finance costs  a lso include £0.04m (FY24: £0.11m) of non-cash finance

charges  for the unwinding of discount on contingent cons ideration and the amortisation of the loan arrangement fee.  

 

The share-based payments  charge of £0.20m for the year (FY24: £0.19m) relates  to charges  for new share schemes

introduced in the year (see below).  

 

The reconci l iation of operating profi t to Adjusted EBITDA is  shown in the table below. The Directors  cons ider that Adjusted

EBITDA is  the most appropriate measure to assess  the bus iness  performance s ince this  reflects  the underlying trading

performance of the Group. Adjusted EBITDA is  not a  statutory measure and is  calculated di fferently by each Company. 

 

Reconci l iation of operating (loss) to
adjusted EBITDA 

2025 2024 

£'000 £'000 
Operating (loss) (2,349) (5,996) 
Depreciation 538 570 

Amortisation of intangible assets  1,559 1,696 

Impairment of intangible assets  - 3,718 

EBITDA (252) (12) 

Exceptional  i tems 826 1,826 
Share based payments  197 194 

Share scheme set-up costs  174 - 

Adjusted EBITDA 945 2,008 

 

 

Taxation 

The Group has  a  tax credit of £0.62m this  year (FY24: £0.67m) which principal ly arises  from the deferred tax credit

movement in the period. The corporation tax current debit of £0.01m (FY24: £0.08m credit) i s  as  a  result of R&D tax credits

adjustment in relation to previous  periods. The deferred tax movement is  a  £0.56m credit (FY24: £0.59m credit) due to the

increase in amortisation of acquired intangibles  recognised in the Consol idated Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

 

Consolidated statement of financial position 

At the year end, the Group's  total  net assets  are £23.73m (FY24: £14.77m).  The major driver of this  movement was the fund-

rais ing mid-year of £10.59m (net of fees) completed ful ly via  an equity placement, resulting in a  corresponding increase in

share reserves. 

 

Non-current assets  of £23.83m (FY24: £24.50m) include intangible assets  of £22.39m (FY24: £22.66m). 

 

Within intangible assets , there were additions  of £0.33m ascribed to customer relationships  and £0.39m ascribed to

goodwi l l .  These both whol ly relate to the acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting Limited.  Payment

was made via  an up-front cash cons ideration of £0.31m, and a post conditional  payment of £0.13m, now paid after the

year end.  The balance relates  to a  net l iabi l i ty pos ition of £(0.28)m on the assets  acquired at the acquis i tion date.  

 

W ithin intangible assets , there were also systems development addi#ons of £0.57m, which largely comprise the

capital isa#on of internal  and external  development costs  related to our bespoke AI  service desk plaQorm, a  major

ini tiative in the year to put cutting edge AI tool ing in the hands of our service desk engineers . 

 

An impairment of goodwi l l  in the Managed IT Services  CGU of £3.72m was recorded in the prior year only. The remaining

movement year-on-year relates  to ordinary amortisation and depreciation. 

 

Property, plant and equipment was  £1.44m (FY24: £1.85m) within which there were £0.18m of additions  relating largely to

computer and office expenditure (FY24: £0.45m).  

 

The gross  trade debtor balance of £2.94m compares  to £1.58m in the previous  year, with the increase driven by timing of

invoicing on several  large contracts . The prepayment balance of £2.37m (FY24: £2.32m) and the contract l iabi l i ties  balance

(i .e. 'deferred income') of £3.72m (FY24: £2.78m) have increased marginal ly. This  i s  due to the working capital  model  of the

Truststream business  where customers  are typical ly invoiced annual ly in advance and costs  from suppl iers  are typical ly



Truststream business  where customers  are typical ly invoiced annual ly in advance and costs  from suppl iers  are typical ly

received annual ly in advance. Accordingly, the respective income and costs  are deferred on the balance sheet and

recognised over the period of the contracts .  

 

Cash flow and net debt 

The Group's  financial  pos ition is  a  net cash pos ition at 31 March 2025 of £3.60m (31 March 2024: net debt £(3.40)m). This

includes  contingent cons ideration at 31 March 2025 of £0.09m (31 March 2024: deferred cons ideration of £1.75m). The

gross  cash balance at 31 March 2025 was £8.74m (FY24: £1.94m). Fol lowing a fund rais ing of £10.59m (net of fees) in the

year, cash balances  have been uti l i sed in satis faction of: (i ) £1.78m in the Truststream Year 2 earn-out (contingent

consideration); (i i ) £0.57m in relation to internal  investment on internal  systems; and (i i i ) £0.31m in relation to the

acquis i tion of the trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting. 

 

Net cash /(debt) 

2025 2024 

£'000 £'000 

Cash balances  8,740 1,943 
Bank loans  - current - - 

Bank loans  - non-current (4,770) (4,738) 

Net cash/(debt) before lease l iabi l i ties  3,970 (2,795) 
Lease l iabi l i ties  - property (368) (604) 

Net cash/(debt) 3,602 (3,399) 

Deferred/contingent cons ideration (95) (1,751) 
Net cash/(debt) including deferred/contingent
consideration 

3,507 (5,150) 

 

The Consol idated Statement of Cashflows reflects  payment of £1.83m contingent cons ideration relating to the acquis i tion

of Truststream (FY24: £0.89m). The cash outflow for property, plant and equipment of £0.18m (FY24: £0.45m) includes

expenditure on internal  hardware.  The payments  to acquire intangible assets  of £0.57m (FY24: £0.11m) includes  the

capital isation of internal  development costs  related to our bespoke AI service desk platform. 

 

I n F Y24, the Company made a purchase of £0.76m shares  into treasury, rela#ng to the exit seRlement terms of the previous

CEO.  There were no further purchases  in FY25. 

 

£8.0m revolving credit facility  

The Company continues  to hold a  £8.0m RCF provided by Santander in Apri l  2022, to provide financial  flexibi l i ty for

acquis i tions  and working capital  requirements . The uti l i sed balance stands  at £4.8m.  The Group drew down £4.5m of RCF

funds to finance the acquis i tion of Truststream in FY23. There have been no further drawdowns with the balance relating to

interest charges.

 

The banking faci l i ty has  a  five-year term which expires  in Apri l  2027 and carries  an interest rate of base rate +3.25% on

drawn funds and 1.3% on undrawn funds. The bank covenants  in the RCF are tested quarterly and calculated on total  net

debt to Adjusted EBITDA leverage and minimum l iquidity. Al l  bank covenants  were met during the year. 

 

Share option grants 

During the year, SysGroup establ ished three new share-based plans  being: 

1.     Value Creation Plan (VCP) 

2.     Performance Share Plan (PSP) 

3.     Saye As  You Earn Plan (SAYE).  

 

The VCP is  an equity-settled share-based payment scheme des igned to incentivise Executive Directors  and senior

management. The VCP operates  through SysGroup Holdings  No 1 Limited (SGH), a  whol ly owned subs idiary, incorporated in

FY25, that serves  as  a  conduit vehicle for administering the plan. Under the VCP, participants  receive ni l  cost options  over

'A' ordinary shares  in SGH at the commencement of the performance period (August 2024 to August 2029). Participants  are

enti tled to share in the value appreciation of the Group's  ordinary shares  based on achieving speci fied performance

hurdles .  The plan includes  service conditions  (continued employment) and market-based performance conditions  (share

price hurdles).  

 

Under the PSP, el igible employees  receive options  that vest subject to continued employment and the achievement of

earnings  per share (EPS) performance targets  measured over a  three-year period.  

 

Under the SAYE scheme, employees  are granted options  to purchase ordinary shares  at a  discount to the market price at the

date of invi tation. Participation requires  employees  to enter into a  savings  contract with monthly contributions  over a  3-



date of invi tation. Participation requires  employees  to enter into a  savings  contract with monthly contributions  over a  3-

year period.  

 

More detai l  i s  provided in the Remuneration Report and note 9 to the financial  s tatements . 

  

KPIs 

The Board of Directors  review the performance of the Group us ing the financial  measures  outl ined below and an

explanation of the financial  results  i s  provided in the Financial  Review above. 

  2025 2024 Change % 

Revenue £20.50 £22.71m (10)% 
Recurring revenue as  a  % of
total  revenue 

79% 76% +3pp 

Gross  profi t £10.01m £10.40m (4)% 

Gross  margin % 49% 46% +3pp 

Adjusted EBITDA1 £0.95m £2.01m (53)% 

Statutory (loss) before tax £(2.45)m £(6.57)m 63% 

Net cash/(debt)2 £3.60m £(3.40)m 206% 

 

1 Adjusted EBITDA is defined as profit before net finance costs, tax, deprecia�on, amor�sa�on, impairments, shared based payment

charge, share scheme set-up costs and adjusting items 

2 Net cash/(debt) represents cash balances less bank loans and lease liabilities 

 

 

 

Owen Phillips 

Chief Financial  Officer 

23 July 2025

 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

  

    
 

2025 2024 
    Group Group 

  Notes  £'000 £'000 

Revenue  4 20,501 22,714 

Cost of sales  
  

(10,491) (12,318) 

Gross profit 
  

10,010 10,396 

Operating expenses  before depreciation, amortisation, impairment
of intangibles , exceptional  i tems, share based payments  and share
scheme set-up costs  

  
(9,065) (8,388) 

Adjusted EBITDA*   945 2,008 

Depreciation 14 (538) (570) 

Amortisation of intangibles  13 (1,559) (1,696) 

Impairment of intangibles  13 - (3,718) 

Exceptional  i tems 8 (826) (1,826) 

Share based payments  9 (197) (194) 

Share scheme set-up costs  (174) - 

Administrative expenses    (12,359) (16,392) 

Operating (loss) 
  

(2,349) (5,996) 

Finance income 6 371 - 

Finance expense 6 (472) (574) 



Finance expense 6 (472) (574) 

(Loss) before taxation   (2,450) (6,570) 

Taxation 12 616 670 

Total comprehensive (loss) attributable to the equity holders of the
Company 

  (1,834) (5,900) 

Adjusted earnings  per share (EPS)** 11 0.3p 2.1p 

Bas ic earnings  per share (EPS) 11 (2.3)p (12.1)p 
Di luted earnings  per share (EPS) 11 (2.3)p (12.1)p 
* Adjusted EBITDA, which is  defined as  profi t before net finance costs , tax, depreciation, amortisation, impairments , shared

based payment charge, share scheme setup costs  and adjusting i tems is  a  non-GAAP metric used by management and is  not

an IFRS disclosure 

** Adjusted EPS is  loss  after tax after adding back amortisation of intangible assets , impairments , exceptional  i tems, share

based payments  and associated tax, divided by the weighted average number of shares  in issue. 

 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 MARCH 2025    

  2025 
 

2024 
  Group Group 

  Notes  £'000 £'000 

Assets       
Non-current assets       
Goodwi l l  13 18,342 17,948 
Intangible assets  13 4,047 4,708 

Property, plant and equipment 14 1,441 1,846 

    23,830 24,502 

Current assets   
Trade and other receivables  16 5,376 4,003 

Cash and cash equivalents    8,740 1,943 

    14,116 5,946 
Total Assets   37,946 30,448 

Equity and liabilities   
Equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent   
Cal led up share capital  21 855 515 

Share premium reserve   19,329 9,080 

Treasury reserve   (842) (984) 

Other reserve   3,481 3,300 

Retained earnings    908 2,856 
    23,731 14,767 

Non-current liabilities   
Lease l iabi l i ties  19 180 400 
Contract l iabi l i ties  20 1,649 143 
Contingent cons ideration  17 - - 
Provis ions  18 295 148 
Deferred taxation 12 288 849 

Bank loan 19 4,770 4,738 

    7,182 6,278 

Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables  17 4,674 4,813 
Lease l iabi l i ties  19 189 204 
Contract l iabi l i ties  20 2,075 2,635 
Deferred cons ideration 10 95 - 
Contingent cons ideration  17  - 1,751 
    7,033 9,403 
Total equity and liabilities   37,946 30,448 
 

 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  

AS AT 31 MARCH 2025 



AS AT 31 MARCH 2025 

  

  
2025 

Compa ny 
2024 

Compa ny 
  Note s  £'000 £'000 
Assets       

Non-current assets       
Inve s tme nts  15 25,962 26,399 
Inta ngi bl e  a s s e ts  13 599 47 
Prope rty, pl a nt a nd e qui pme nt 14 212 331 
De fe rre d ta x a s s e t   689 364 
    27,462 27,141 

Current assets   
Tra de  a nd othe r re ce i va bl e s  16 1,197 105 

Ca s h a nd ca s h e qui va l e nts    5,201 118 

    6,398 223 

Total assets   33,860 27,364 

Equity and liabilities   

Equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent   

Ca l l e d up s ha re  ca pi ta l  21 855 515 

Sha re  pre mi um re s e rve    19,329 9,080 

Tre a s ury re s e rve    (842) (984) 

Othe r re s e rve    3,481 3,300 

Re ta i ne d e a rni ngs    166 2,087 

    22,989 13,998 

Non-current liabilities   
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s  19 - 49 
Provi s i ons  18 25 68 
Ba nk l oa n 19 4,770 4,738 

    4,795 4,855 

Current liabilities   
Tra de  a nd othe r pa ya bl e s  17 6,031 6,717 
Le a s e  l i a bi l i ti e s  19 45 43 
Conti nge nt cons i de ra ti on  17  - 1,751 

    6,076  8,511 

Total equity and liabilities   33,860  27,364 

 

As  permitted by section 408 of the Companies  Act 2006, the Company's  statement of comprehensive income has  not been

included in the financial  s tatements . For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company made a loss  of £1,807,000 (FY24:

loss  of £9,548,000).  

 

 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

 

 
 Attributable to equity
holders of the parent 

  Sha re
ca pi ta l  

Sha re  pre mi um
a ccount 

Tre a s ury
re s e rve  

Othe r
re s e rve  

Re ta i ne d
e a rni ngs  

Tota l  
 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
As at 1 April 2023 494 9,080 (201) 3,205 8,657 21,235 
Comprehensive loss             
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - - - (5,900) (5,900) 
Total comprehensive loss - - - - (5,900) (5,900) 
Distributions to owners 
I s s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l  21 - - - - 21 
Purcha s e  of own  
s ha re s  i nto Tre a s ury - - (783) - - (783) 

Sha re  opti ons  cha rge  - - - 194 - 194 
Re s e rve s  tra ns fe r on  
forfe i ture  of s ha re
opti ons  

- - - (99) 99 - 

Total distributions to owners 21 - (783) 95 99 (568) 
At 31 March 2024 515 9,080 (984) 3,300 2,856 14,767 

As at 1 April 2024 515 9,080 (984) 3,300 2,856 14,767 



Comprehensive loss             
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - - - (1,834) (1,834) 
Total comprehensive loss - - - - (1,834) (1,834) 
Distributions to owners 
I s s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l  340 10,249 - - - 10,589 
Purcha s e  of own  
s ha re s  i nto Tre a s ury - - 142 - (142) - 

Sha re  opti ons  cha rge  - - - 197 - 197 
De fe rre d ta x on s ha re
opti ons  - - - 12 - 12 

Re s e rve s  tra ns fe r on  
forfe i ture  of s ha re
opti ons  

- - - (28) 28 - 

Total distributions to owners 340 10,249 142 181 (114) 10,798 
At 31 March 2025 855 19,329 (842) 3,481 908 23,731 

 
The  fol l owi ng de s cri be s  the  na ture  a nd purpos e  of e a ch re s e rve  wi thi n e qui ty: 
 
Re s e rve   De s cri pti on a nd purpos e  
Sha re  pre mi um re s e rve  Amount s ubs cri be d for s ha re  ca pi ta l  i n e xce s s  of nomi na l  va l ue s . 
Othe r re s e rve  Amount re s e rve d for s ha re  ba s e d pa yme nts  to be  re l e a s e d ove r the  l i fe  of the

i ns trume nts  a nd the  e qui ty e l e me nt of conve rti bl e  l oa ns  

Tre a s ury re s e rve  Compa ny owne d s ha re s  he l d for the  purpos e  of s e ttl i ng the  e xe rci s e  of
e mpl oye e  s ha re  opti ons .  

Re ta i ne d e a rni ngs  Al l  othe r ne t ga i ns  a nd l os s e s  a nd tra ns a cti ons  wi th owne rs  (e .g. di vi de nds ) not
re cogni s e d e l s e whe re . 

 

 

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

 

 

  Sha re
ca pi ta l  

Sha re
pre mi um
a ccount 

Tre a s ury
re s e rve  

Othe r
re s e rve  

Re ta i ne d
e a rni ngs  Tota l  

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
At 1 April 2023 494 9,080 (201) 3,205 11,536 24,114 
Comprehensive loss             
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - - - (9,548) (9,548) 
Total comprehensive loss - - - - (9,548) (9,548) 
Distributions to owners 
I s s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l  21 - - - - 21 
Purcha s e  of own  
s ha re s  i nto Tre a s ury - - (783) - - (783) 

Sha re  opti ons  cha rge  - - - 194 - 194 
Re s e rve s  tra ns fe r on  
forfe i ture  of s ha re  opti ons  - - - (99) 99 - 

Total distributions to owners 21 - (783) 95 99 (568) 
At 31 March 2024 515 9,080 (984) 3,300 2,087 13,998 

At 1 April 2024 515 9,080 (984) 3,300 2,087 13,998 
Comprehensive loss             
Los s  for the  pe ri od - - - - (1,807) (1,807) 
Total comprehensive loss - - - - (1,807) (1,807) 
Distributions to owners 
I s s ue  of s ha re  ca pi ta l  340 10,249 - - - 10,589 
Purcha s e  of own  
s ha re s  i nto Tre a s ury - - 142 - (142) - 

Sha re  opti ons  cha rge  - - - 197 - 197 
De fe rre d ta x on s ha re  opti ons  - - - 12 - 12 
Re s e rve s  tra ns fe r on  
forfe i ture  of s ha re  opti ons  - - - (28) 28 - 

Total distributions to owners 340 10,249 142 181 (114) 10,798 
At 31 March 2025 855 19,329 (842) 3,481 166 22,989 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

 

    2025 2024 

    Group Group 

  Notes  £'000 £'000 

Cashflows used in operating activities       
(Loss) after tax   (1,834) (5,900) 
Adjustments for:   
Depreciation and amortisation 13,14 2,097 2,266 
Impairment of intangibles  13 - 3,718 
Net finance costs  6 101 574 
Share based payments    197 194 
Fair value adjustment to contingent cons ideration 80 - 
Increase in provis ions  18 140 - 
Taxation (credit) 12 (616) (670) 
Operating cashflows before movement in working capital   165 182 
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables    (1,321) 819 
Increase in trade and other payables     496 103 
Cashflow from operations   (660) 1,104 
Taxation received/(paid)   40 (439) 
Net cash (used in)/from operating activities   (620) 665 
Cashflows from investing activities   
Payments  to acquire property, plant and equipment 14 (179) (450) 
Payments  to acquire intangible assets  13 (570) (109) 
Acquis i tion of subs idiary net of cash acquired 10 (311) - 
Interest received on cash deposits  371 - 
Net cash used in investing activities   (689) (559) 
Cashflows from financing activities   
Payment of contingent and deferred cons ideration on acquis i tions  22 (1,862) (885) 
Repurchase of shares  into treasury - (762) 
Net proceeds from issue of share capital  10,589 - 
Capital/principal  paid on lease l iabi l i ties   22 (162) (199) 
Interest paid on loan faci l i ty  22 (438) (475) 
Interest paid on lease l iabi l i ties   22 (21) (28) 
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities   8,106 (2,349) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   6,797 (2,243) 
Cash and cash equivalents  at the beginning of the year   1,943 4,186 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year   8,740 1,943 

 

 

 

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 

 

1.  Accounting policies 

SysGroup Plc (the 'Company') i s  a  Company incorporated and domici led in the United Kingdom. The Company's  registered

office is  at 55 Spring Gardens, Manchester M2 2BY. These consol idated financial  s tatements  comprise the Company and i ts

subs idiaries  (together referred to as  the 'Group'). 

 

Statement of compliance  

This  consol idated financial  information does  not comprise statutory accounts  within the meaning of section 434 of the

Companies  Act 2006. The comparative figures  for the financial  year ended 31 March 2024 are an extract of the Company's

statutory accounts  for the year ended 31 March 2024, prepared in accordance with International  Financial  Reporting

Standards  (IFRS), approved by the Board of Directors  on 23 June 2024 and del ivered to the Registrar of Companies . The

report of the auditor on those accounts  was  unqual i fied, did not contain an emphasis  of matter paragraph and did not

contain any statement under section 498 (2) or (3) of the Companies  Act 2006.

 

The statutory accounts  for the year ended 31 March 2025 wi l l  be del ivered to the Registrar of Companies  fol lowing the



The statutory accounts  for the year ended 31 March 2025 wi l l  be del ivered to the Registrar of Companies  fol lowing the

Company's  Annual  General  Meeting. The Auditors  have reported on those accounts; their report was  unqual i fied, did not

contain an emphasis  of matter paragraph and did not contain any statement under section 498 (2) or (3) of the Companies

Act 2006.

 

These Group financial  s tatements  have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted international  accounting standards

('endorsed IFRS') and with those parts  of the Companies  Act 2006 appl icable to companies  preparing their accounts  under

endorsed IFRS. The Company financial  s tatements  have been prepared in accordance with Financial  Reporting Standard

101 (FRS 101) 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' i ssued by the Financial  Reporting Counci l  (FRC). Whi le the financial

information included in this  annual  financial  results  announcement has  been prepared in accordance with the recognition

and measurement principles  of international  accounting standards  in conformity with the requirements  of Companies  Act

2006, this  announcement does  not contain sufficient information to comply with IFRS and FRS 101. 

 

Basis of preparation - Group 

The principal  accounting pol icies  adopted in the preparation of the Financial  Statements  are set out below. The pol icies

have been cons istently appl ied to a l l  the years  presented, unless  otherwise stated. The consol idated financial  s tatements

have been prepared under the historical  cost bas is , except for the revaluation of certain financial  l iabi l i ties  and share

based payments  which have been valued in accordance with IFRS 9 and IFRS 2 respectively.  

 

The preparation of financial  s tatements  in compl iance with IFRS requires  the use of certain cri tical  accounting estimates. It

a lso requires  Group management to exercise judgement in applying the Group's  accounting pol icies . The areas  where

s igni ficant judgements  and estimates  have been made in preparing the financial  s tatements  and their effect are disclosed

in note 2. The financial  s tatements  are presented in pounds sterl ing, rounded to the nearest thousand, unless  otherwise

stated.  
 

Basis of preparation - Company 

The Company financial  s tatements  are prepared under the historical  cost convention, except for certain financial

instruments  that are measured at fa i r value. The Company's  financial  s tatements  are presented in pounds sterl ing (£),

which is  a lso the functional  currency of the Company.  

 

The preparation of financial  s tatements  in conformity with FRS 101 requires  the use of certain cri tical  accounting

estimates  and assumptions. It a lso requires  management to exercise i ts  judgement in applying the Company's  accounting

pol icies . Signi ficant judgements  and estimates  are disclosed in the relevant notes  to the financial  s tatements . 

 

The Company has  elected to take advantage of certain disclosure exemptions  avai lable under FRS 101, including: 

·     	A cash flow statement and related notes  under IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' 

·     	Certain disclosures  required by IFRS 7 'Financial  Instruments: Disclosures ' 

·     	Disclosures  in respect of the fa ir value of financial  instruments  under IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' 

 Going concern 

The Directors  have prepared the financial  s tatements  on a going concern bas is  which assumes that the Group and the

Company wi l l  continue to meet l iabi l i ties  as  they fa l l  due. 

 

On 31 March 2025, the Group had a gross  cash balance of £8.7m and a net cash pos ition excluding deferred cons ideration

and lease l iabi l i ties  of £4.0m. The Group has  a  £0.5m unused overdraft faci l i ty and £3.3m of undrawn headroom in i ts

Revolving Credit Faci l i ty (RCF) loan faci l i ty which is  avai lable for working capital  and acquis i tions.  

 

In order to assess  whether the Group is  a  going concern, the Directors  have reviewed the Base bus iness  forecast and a

Sensitised vers ion for the period to September 2026. 

 

In the Base forecast there is  cons idered ample headroom in the bank covenants , with the bus iness  starting with a  strong

cash pos ition of £8.7m on 31 March 2025, fol lowing a £10.6m equity ra ise in June 2024. When coupled with high levels  of

cash convers ion, the cash balance steadi ly improves  over time under the Base forecast.  

 

In the Sens itised forecast, which includes  assumptions  for a  s igni ficant decl ine in revenue and profi ts , the Group

maintains  a  pos itive gross  cash balance, reduces  net debt and stays  within the bank covenants . The Group has  a  bus iness

model  with a  high degree of financial  res i l ience s ince c86% of revenue is  derived from contracted managed IT services

which is  a  continuous and bus iness  cri tical  service supply to customers, providing comfort that the Sens itised forecast i s

unreal istic.  

 

The forecasts  show that even under a  downside scenario, the Group has  adequate cash reserves  to con#nue to operate for



The forecasts  show that even under a  downside scenario, the Group has  adequate cash reserves  to con#nue to operate for

the foreseeable future.  Therefore, the directors  con#nue to adopt the going concern bas is  of accoun#ng in preparing the

financial  s tatements . 

 

New standards and interpretations  

There are a  number of standards, amendments  to standards, and interpreta#ons which have been issued by the I AS B that

are effective in future accounting periods  that the Group has  decided not to adopt early. 

 

The fol lowing amendments  are effective for the annual  reporting periods  beginning 1 January 2025: 

 

·        Lack of Exchangeabi l i ty (Amendment to IAS 21 The Effects  of Changes  in Foreign Exchange Rates) 

 

The fol lowing amendments  are effective for the annual  reporting periods  beginning 1 January 2026: 

 

·        Amendment to the C lass ifica#on and Measurement of F inancial  I nstruments  (Amendments  to I F RS 9 F inancial

Instruments  and IFRS 7) 

·        Contracts  Referencing Nature-dependent Electrici ty (Amendments  to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) 

 

The fol lowing standards  and amendments  are effective for the annual  reporting periods  beginning 

1 January 2027: 

 

·        IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial  Statements   

·        IFRS 19 Subs idiaries  without Publ ic Accountabi l i ty: Disclosures. 

 

The Group is  currently assess ing the effect of these new accounting standards  and amendments .  

 

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial  Statements , which was issued by the IASB in Apri l  2024 supersedes  IAS 1

and wi l l  result in major consequentia l  amendments  to IFRS Accounting Standards  including IAS 8 Bas is  of Preparation of

Financial  Statements  (renamed from Accounting Pol icies , Changes  in Accounting Estimates  and Errors). Even though IFRS 18

wi l l  not have any effect on the recognition and measurement of i tems in the consol idated financial  s tatements , i t i s

expected to have a s igni ficant effect on the presentation and disclosure of certain i tems. These changes  include

categorisation and sub-totals  in the statement of profi t or loss , aggregation/disaggregation and label l ing of information,

and disclosure of management-defined performance measures.  

 

The Group does  not expect to be el igible to apply IFRS 19. 

 

IFRS 16 - Leases 

The group has  no activi ties  acting as  a  lessor. The group recognises  right of use assets  in relation to the lease of office

space and equipment. 

  

Lease l iabi l i ties  
Land & Bui ldings  

  £'000 

At 1 Apri l  2024 604 
Additions  - 
Disposal  (43) 
Interest expense (9) 
Lease payments  (183) 
At 31 March 2025 369 
      
      
Repayment of lease l iabi l i ties  are analysed
as  fol lows:   2025 
    £'000 
Due within one year   189 
Instalments  due after one year but no more
than five years    

180 

Instalments  due after five years    - 

 

Lease l iabi l i ties  are measured at the present value of the contractual  payments  due to the lessor over the lease term, with

the discount rate determined by reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless  (as  i s  typical ly the case) this  i s  not readi ly

determinable, in which case the Group's  incremental  borrowing rate on commencement of the lease is  used. The interest

rate used was 4%. Variable lease payments  are only included in the measurement of the lease l iabi l i ty i f they depend on an

index or rate. In such cases, the ini tia l  measurement of the lease l iabi l i ty assumes the variable element wi l l  remain



index or rate. In such cases, the ini tia l  measurement of the lease l iabi l i ty assumes the variable element wi l l  remain

unchanged throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments  are expensed in the period to which they relate. 

 

Right of use assets 
Land &

Bui ldings  

  £'000 

At 1 Apri l  2024 751 
Additions  - 
Disposals  (46) 
Depreciation (207) 
At 31 March 2025 498 
 

R ight of use assets  are ini#al ly measured at the amount of the lease l iabi l i ty, reduced for any lease incen#ves  received,

and increased for: 

 

·      Lease payments  made at or before the commencement of the lease 

·      Ini tia l  di rect costs  incurred 

·      The amount of any provis ion recognised where the Group is  contractual ly required to dismantle, remove

or restore the leased asset (typical ly leasehold di lapidations  - see note 18) 

 

The property lease rentals  are fixed payments  over the rental  terms. 

 

Basis of consolidation 

Where the Company has  control  over an investee, i t i s  class i fied as  a  subs idiary. The Company controls  an investee i f a l l

three of the fol lowing elements  are present: power over the investee; exposure to variable returns  from the investee; and the

abi l i ty of the investor to use i ts  power to affect those variable returns. Control  i s  re-assessed whenever facts  and

circumstances  indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements  of control . 

 

The consol idated financial  s tatements  present the results  of the Company and i ts  subs idiaries  ('the Group') as  i f they

formed a s ingle enti ty. Intercompany transactions  and balances  between Group companies  are therefore el iminated in ful l . 

 

The consol idated financial  s tatements  incorporate the results  of bus iness  combinations  us ing the acquis i tion method. In

the statement of financial  pos ition, the acquirer's  identi fiable assets , l iabi l i ties  and contingent l iabi l i ties  are ini tia l ly

recognised at their fa i r values  at the acquis i tion date. The results  of acquired operations  are included in the consol idated

statement of comprehensive income from the date on which control  i s  obtained. They are deconsol idated from the date on

which control  ceases. 

 

Business combinations 

Al l  bus iness  combinations  are accounted for by applying the purchase method. On acquis i tion, a l l  the subs idiaries ' assets

and l iabi l i ties  that exist at the date of acquis i tion are recorded at their fa i r values  reflecting the conditions  at that date.

The results  of subs idiaries  acquired in the period are included in the income statement from the date on which control  i s

obtained. 

 

Goodwill 

Goodwi l l  represents  the excess  of the cost of a  bus iness  combination over the total  acquis i tion date fa ir value of the

identi fiable assets , l iabi l i ties  and contingent l iabi l i ties  acquired. Goodwi l l  i s  not amortised but is  capital ised as  an

intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the consol idated statement of comprehensive

income. In determining the fa ir value of cons ideration, the fa ir value of equity issued is  the market value of equity at the

date of completion, and the fa ir value of contingent cons ideration is  based on the expected future cashflows based on

whether the Directors  bel ieve performance conditions  wi l l  be met and thus  the extent to which the further cons ideration

wi l l  be payable. Where the fa ir value of identi fiable assets , l iabi l i ties  and contingent l iabi l i ties  exceed the fa ir value of

cons ideration paid, the excess  is  credited in ful l  to the consol idated statement of comprehensive income on the acquis i tion

date. 

 

Impairment of non-financial assets 

Impairment tests  on goodwi l l  and other intangible assets  with indefini te useful  economic l ives  are undertaken annual ly at

the financial  year end. Other non-financial  assets  are subject to impairment tests  whenever events  or changes  in

circumstances  indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Where the carrying value of an asset exceeds i ts

recoverable amount (i .e. the higher of value in use and fa ir value less  costs  to sel l ), the asset i s  wri tten down accordingly.  

 

Where i t i s  not poss ible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual  asset, the impairment test i s  carried out on



the asset's  cash-generating unit (i .e. the lowest Group of assets  in which the asset belongs  for which there are separable

identi fiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows from the other assets  or Groups of assets). Goodwi l l

i s  a l located on ini tia l  recognition to each of the Group's  cash-generating units  that are expected to benefi t from the

synergies  of the combination giving rise to the goodwi l l . 

 

The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value us ing a  post-tax discount rate that reflects  current

market assessments  of the time value of money and the risks  speci fic to the asset for which the estimates  of future cash

flows have not been adjusted. 

 

Foreign currencies 

Transactions  in foreign currencies  are recorded us ing the rate of exchange rul ing at the date of the transaction. Monetary

assets  and l iabi l i ties  denominated in foreign currencies  are trans lated us ing the rate of exchange rul ing at the balance

sheet date and the gains  or losses  on trans lation are included in the consol idated statement of comprehensive income. The

results  of foreign subs idiaries  that have a functional  currency di fferent from the Group's  presentation currency are

trans lated at the average rates  of exchange for the year. Assets  and l iabi l i ties  of foreign subs idiaries  that have a functional

currency di fferent from the Group's  presentation currency, are trans lated at the exchange rates  prevai l ing at the balance

sheet date. Exchange di fferences  aris ing from the trans lation of the results  of foreign subs idiaries  and their opening net

assets  are recognised as  a  separate component of equity. 

 

Revenue  

Revenue is  recognised to the extent that i t i s  probable that the economic benefi ts  associated with the transaction wi l l  flow

into the Group and revenue represents  the fa ir value of amounts  received or receivable for goods and services  provided net

of trade discounts  and VAT.  

 

The Group has  three principal  categories  of performance obl igation: managed services , profess ional  services  and value-

added resale. Al l  customer sales  are s igned as  contracts  or orders  which separately speci fy the services  and products  to be

del ivered and these are mapped to one of the three revenue recognition categories . The contracts  or orders  speci fy, by

service and product, the sales  price and the contracted term of the services . As  such, the separate performance obl igations

and al location of transaction price can be identi fied clearly from the customer sales  contracts . 

 

 The revenue recognition pol icies  can be summarised as  fol lows: 

 

Revenue category Performance del ivery Revenue recognition 

Managed services  Contracted managed services  are
del ivered from an agreed
commencement date and for a
contracted term of one to  three years .
Managed services  comprises  mul#ple
streams of service including cloud
hos#ng and support and opera#ng
l icences. Due to the nature of this
revenue the streams are cons idered
inter-dependant. The services  are
del ivered uni formly over the dura#on
of the contract and invoiced annual ly,
quarterly or monthly in advance of the
service del ivery period. 
 
 
 
 

Revenue is  recognised evenly over the
dura#on of the contract period based on
the sales  price as  specified in the customer
sales  contract. This  i s  on the bas is  that the
customer receives  and consumes the
services  evenly over the term of the
contract. Amounts  invoiced in advance of
service del ivery periods  are accounted for
as  contract l iabi l i#es  and recognised as
revenue in the Consol idated Statement of
Comprehensive I ncome to match the period
in which the services  are del ivered. 

Profess ional  services  P rofess ional  services  are del ivered by
a team of technical  consultants  based
on a scope of work agreed and s igned
with a  customer. The scope of work
includes  a  specifica#on of the work to
be del ivered, an es#ma#on of the
number of consultancy days  required,
and a sales  value based on a day rate.
P rofess ional  services  are invoiced
either in advance of work performed, in
arrears  a>er the service is  del ivered or
as  part of a  larger project contract
mi lestone.  

Revenue is  recognised based on chargeable
days  del ivered us ing the sales  day rate
specified in the customer contract. Revenue
recogni#on is  therefore matched to the
#ming of when the customer receives  the
benefit of the consultancy services  which is
in l ine with the day the work is  performed.
P rofess ional  services  are ei ther invoiced in
arrears  for the actual  days  del ivered or
invoiced in advance. W hen invoiced in
advance, the sales  value is  treated as
contract l iabi l i#es  and recognised as
revenue in the Consol idated Statement of
Comprehensive I ncome in the period in
which the consultancy days  are del ivered. 
 

Value added resale Value added resale ('VAR') comprises
sales  of I T hardware and l icences
where the Group sa#sfies  i ts
performance obl iga#on by procuring
the products  from suppl iers  for

Revenue is  recognised on del ivery of the
products  from the suppl ier. I nvoices  are
typical ly ra ised in advance of del ivery and
treated as  contract l iabi l i#es  un#l  del ivery
has  been fulfil led. At this  point the revenue



the products  from suppl iers  for
del ivery to the customer. There are no
further or ongoing obl iga#ons to the
Group after del ivery. The sales  price for
each product is  separately specified in
the customer sales  contract. VAR sales
are ei ther invoiced in ful l  in advance of
del ivery or invoiced according to an
agreed contract mi lestone i f part of a
larger contract. 

has  been fulfil led. At this  point the revenue
and associated purchase cost i s  recognised
in the Consol idated Statement of
Comprehensive Income. 

For managed services  and profess ional  services  revenue, these are recognised over time as  the enti ty's  performance does

not create an asset with an al ternative use to the enti ty and the enti ty has  an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date. 

 

Note that some contracts  with customers  combine a mix of managed services , profess ional  services  and value-added

resale. When this  i s  the case, performance obl igations  are identi fied and recognised in l ine with the pol icies  described

above. 

 

Segmental reporting 

Operating segments  are reported in a  manner cons istent with the internal  reporting provided to the chief operating

decis ion maker. The chief operating decis ion maker has  been identi fied as  the Board of Directors . 

 

Alternative profit measures 

In reporting i ts  results , the Directors  have presented various  a l ternative profi t measures  (APMs) of financial  performance,

pos ition or cashflows, which are not defined or speci fied under the requirements  of IFRS. On the bas is  that these measures

are not defined by IFRS, they may not be directly comparable with other companies . The key APMs that the Group uses

include recurring revenue as  a  percentage of revenue, Adjusted EBITDA, Adjusted EPS and Net cash. 

  

The Group makes  certain adjustments  to the statutory profi t in order to derive many of these APMs. These include

exceptional  i tems and share based payments . The group presents  as  exceptional  i tems on the face of the Statement of

Comprehensive Income those materia l  i tems of income and expense which the Directors  cons ider, because of their s ize or

nature and expected non-recurrence, merit separate presentation to faci l i tate financial  comparison with prior periods  and

to assess  trends  in financial  performance. Exceptional  i tems are included in Administration expenses  in the Consol idated

Statement of Comprehensive Income but excluded from Adjusted EBITDA as  management bel ieve they should be cons idered

separately to gain an understanding of the underlying profi tabi l i ty of the trading bus inesses  on a cons istent bas is  from

year to year.  

 

Financial instruments 

Financial  instruments  are class i fied and accounted for, according to the substance of the contractual  arrangement, as

either financial  assets , financial  l iabi l i ties  or equity instruments . An equity instrument is  any contract that evidences  a

res idual  interest in the assets  of the Company after deducting a l l  of i ts  l iabi l i ties . 

 

Financial assets 

The Group's  financial  assets  comprise trade and other receivables  and cash and cash equivalents  in the consol idated

statement of financial  pos ition. Trade receivables  are stated at their nominal  value and an expected l i fetime credit loss

wi l l  be recognised us ing the s impl i fied approach and shown in administrative expenses  in the Consol idated Statement of

Comprehensive Income. Impairment reviews for other receivables , including those due from related parties , use the general

approach whereby twelve month expected credit losses  are provided for and l i fetime credit losses  are only recognised

where there has  been a s igni ficant increase in credit risk, by monitoring the credit worthiness  of the other party. Cash and

cash equivalents  include cash in hand.  

 

Contract assets 

Costs  incurred to ful fi l  a  contract are recognised as  an asset i f and only i f a l l  of the fol lowing cri teria  are met: - 

 

·        The costs  relate directly to a  contract (or a  speci fic anticipated contract) 

·        The costs  generate or enhance resources  of the enti ty that wi l l  be used in satis fying performance obl igations  in the

future 

·        The costs  are expected to be recovered 

 

These include costs  such as  direct labour, direct materia ls , and the al location of overheads that relate directly to the

contract.  



 

The asset recognised in respect of the costs  to obtain or ful fi l  a  contract i s  amortised on a systematic bas is  that i s

cons istent with the pattern of transfer of the goods or services  to which the asset relates .  

 

Share capital 

Financial  instruments  issued by the Group are class i fied as  equity only to the extent that they do not meet the defini tion of

a financial  l iabi l i ty or financial  asset. The Group's  ordinary shares  are class i fied as  equity instruments  and are recorded

at the proceeds received, net of direct i ssue costs . Proceeds of any share issue in excess  of the nominal  value of the share

capital  i s  recognised within the share premium account. 

 

Financial liabilities 

The Group class i fies  i ts  financial  l iabi l i ties  into one of two categories , depending on the purpose for which i t was

acquired. The Group's  accounting pol icy for each category is  as  fol lows: 

 

Fair value through profit or loss 

This  category comprises  only contingent cons ideration. They are carried in the statement of financial  pos ition at fa i r

values  with changes  in fa i r value recognised in the consol idated income statement. 

 

Other financial liabilities 

Other financial  l iabi l i ties  include trade payables  and other short-term monetary l iabi l i ties , which are ini tia l ly

recognised at fa i r value and subsequently carried at amortised cost us ing the effective interest rate method. 

 

Fair value measurement hierarchy 

IFRS 9 requires  certain disclosures  which require the class i fication of financial  assets  and financial  l iabi l i ties  measured

at fa i r value to reflect the s igni ficance of the inputs  used in making the fa ir value measurement. The fa ir value hierarchy

has  the fol lowing levels : 

 

a .       Quoted prices  in active markets  for identical  assets  or l iabi l i ties  (Level  1) 

b.      Inputs  other than quoted prices  included within Level  1 that are observable for the asset or l iabi l i ty, ei ther directly

(i .e. as  prices) or indirectly (i .e. derived from prices) (Level  2) 

c.       Inputs  from the asset or l iabi l i ty that are not based on observable market data (Level  3) 

 

The level  in the fa ir value hierarchy within which the financial  asset or financial  l iabi l i ty i s  categorised is  determined on

the bas is  of the lowest level  input that i s  s igni ficant to the fa ir value measurement. Financial  assets  and financial

l iabi l i ties  are class i fied in their enti rety into only one of the three levels . 

 

Share based payments 

Equity-settled share-based payments  are measured at fa i r value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting

conditions) at the date of grant. The fa ir value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments  is

expensed on a straight-l ine bas is  over the vesting period, based on the SysGroup's  estimate of the shares  that wi l l

eventual ly vest a l lowing for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions. 

 

Fair value is  measured us ing the Black-Scholes  or the Monte Carlo pricing models , based on observable market prices . The

expected l i fe used in the model  has  been adjusted, based on management's  best estimate, for the effects  of non-

transferabi l i ty, exercise restrictions  and behavioral  cons iderations. 

 

 

Al l  outstanding Share Plans  are subject to some performance conditions. The element of the income statement charge

relating to market performance conditions  is  fixed at the grant date. 

 

At the end of the reporting period, SysGroup revises  i ts  estimates  for the number of awards  expected to vest. It recognises

the impact of the revis ion to original  estimates, i f any, in the income statement, with a  corresponding adjustment to equity. 

 

Property plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less  depreciation. Depreciation is  provided at annual  rates

calculated to write off the cost less  estimated res idual  value of each asset over i ts  expected useful  l i fe, as  fol lows: 

 

Office equipment - 20% - 33% straight l ine 

Freehold property - 2% straight l ine 

Right of use assets  - over the period of the lease 



Right of use assets  - over the period of the lease 

 

Investment in subsidiaries 

Fixed asset investments  in the parent company are shown at cost less  any provis ion for impairment as  necessary. 

 

Research and development 

Research expenditure is  wri tten off to the consol idated statement of comprehensive income in the year in which the

expenditure occurs . Development expenditure is  treated in the same way unless  the Directors  are satis fied as  to the

technical , commercial  and financial  viabi l i ty of individual  projects , there is  an intention to complete and sel l  the product

and the costs  can be eas i ly measurable. In this  s i tuation, the expenditure is  capital ised, and the amortised expense is

included in administrative expenses  in the Consol idated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the years  during which

the Group is  to benefi t. 

 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets  are recognised on bus iness  combinations  i f they are separable from the acquired enti ty or give rise to

other contractual/legal  rights . The amounts  ascribed to such intangibles  are arrived at by us ing appropriate valuation

techniques  (see section related to cri tical  estimates  and judgements  below). 

 

The s igni ficant intangibles  recognised by the Group, their estimated useful  economic l ives  and the methods used to

determine the cost of intangibles  acquired in bus iness  combinations  are as  fol lows: 

 
Intangible asset 
 

Estimated UEL 
 

Customer
relationships   

5-10 years  

System development 5 years  

Deferred taxation 

Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are recognised where the carrying amount of an asset or l iabi l i ty in the consol idated

statement of financial  pos ition di ffers  from i ts  tax base, except for di fferences  aris ing on:  

 

·        The ini tia l  recognition of goodwi l l  

·        The ini tia l  recognition of an asset or l iabi l i ty in a  transaction which is  not a  bus iness  combination and at the time

of the transaction affects  neither accounting nor taxable profi t 

·        Investments  in subs idiaries  and jointly control led enti ties  where the Group is  able to control  the timing of the

reversal  of the di fference and i t i s  probable that the di fference wi l l  not reverse in the foreseeable future 

 

Recognition of deferred tax assets  i s  restricted to those instances  where i t i s  highly probable that rel ief against taxable

profi t wi l l  be avai lable.  

 

The amount of the asset or l iabi l i ty i s  determined us ing tax rates  that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date and are expected to apply when the deferred tax l iabi l i ties/(assets) are settled/(recovered).  

 

Deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  are offset when the Group has  a  legal ly enforceable right to offset current tax assets  and

l iabi l i ties  and the deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  relate to taxes  levied by the same tax authori ty on ei ther the same

taxable Group Company; or di fferent Group enti ties  which intend either to settle current tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  on a net

bas is , or to real ise the assets  and settle the l iabi l i ties  s imultaneously, in each future period in which s igni ficant amounts

of deferred tax assets  or l iabi l i ties  are expected to be settled or recovered.  

 

Deferred tax l iabi l i ties  are recognised on intangible assets  and other temporary di fferences  recognised in bus iness

combinations. 

 

2.   Significant accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of this  financial  information requires  management to make estimates  and judgements  that affect the

amounts  reported for assets  and l iabi l i ties  at the period end date and the amounts  reported for revenues and expenses

during each period. The nature of the estimation or judgement means that actual  outcomes could di ffer from the estimates

and judgements  taken in the preparation of the financial  s tatements .  

 

Significant accounting estimates 

 

Impairment of goodwill and other intangibles 

The Group tests  goodwi l l  for impairment annual ly and in l ine with the stated accounting pol icy. This  involves  judgement



The Group tests  goodwi l l  for impairment annual ly and in l ine with the stated accounting pol icy. This  involves  judgement

regarding the future development of the bus iness  and the estimation of the level  of future profi tabi l i ty and cash flows to

support the carrying value of goodwi l l .  

 

An impairment review has  been performed at the reporting date taking into account sens itivi ties  around future bus iness

performance, covering a  range of outcomes and risks  over levels  of revenue, cost and cash generation.  (see note 13 for

detai ls ). No impairment is  required. 

 

Valuation of intangible assets acquired in business combinations 

Determining the fa ir value of customer relationships  acquired in bus iness  combinations  requires  estimation of the value of

the cash flows related to those relationships  and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value. 

 

Impairment of investments (Company) 

The Company holds  investments  in subs idiaries . In l ine with the Company accounting pol icies  investments  are assessed for

impairment when there is  an impairment trigger.  

 

An impairment review has  been performed at the reporting date cons idering sens itivi ties  around future bus iness

performance, covering a  range of outcomes and risks  over levels  of revenue, cost and cash generation. See note 15 for

detai ls . An impairment of £440k has  been recorded. 

 

 

 

Capitalised development costs 

The Group has  capital ised £570k of development costs  in the year (FY24: £Ni l ). The capital isation of development costs

requires  judgement to determine (1) the technical , commercial  and financial  viabi l i ty of individual  projects , (2) that there

is  an intention to complete and use/sel l  the product and (3) the costs  can be rel iably measured.  

 

Significant accounting judgements 

 

Revenue 

Management makes  judgements  in determining the appropriate appl ication of revenue recognition pol icies  to the sale of

services  and products . An explanation of the Group's  revenue recognition pol icy is  included in note 1. 

 

Assessment of CGU's and carrying value of intangible assets  

A cash-generating unit (CGU) is  the smal lest identi fiable group of assets  that generate cash inflows that are largely

independent of the cash inflows from other assets  or groups of assets  and the Board of Directors  use their judgement to

identi fy the CGUs of the Group. When SysGroup acquire a  company, the newly acquired bus iness  is  usual ly a l located i ts

own CGU for the fi rst year and unti l  such time as  ei ther the bus iness  and assets  have been hived up into the main SysGroup

trading company or when the systems, finances  and management of the bus iness  have been successful ly integrated,

whichever is  earl ier. For the current year, there are three CGUs, being the legacy SysGroup managed services  acquis i tions

which operate as  one CGU, Truststream and the newly acquired Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited. See note 13 for detai ls .  

 

Useful economic lives of intangible assets 

Intangible assets  are amortised over their useful  economic l ives . Useful  l ives  are based on management's  estimates  of the

period over which the assets  wi l l  generate revenue, which are periodical ly reviewed for continued appropriateness .

Changes  to estimates  can result in changes  in the carrying values  and hence amounts  charged to the income statement in

particular periods  which could be s igni ficant. The Group have capital ised system development expenditure in the current

year and the intangible asset i s  being amortised over a  five-year useful  l i fe which the Directors  cons ider appropriate. 

  

IFRS 16 - Leases 

Management makes  judgements  in their assessment of lease contract agreements  to ensure the appropriate lease

accounting recognition under IFRS 16 - Leases. The main elements  of judgement are: 

 

·     Determining the inherent rate of interest which appl ies  to each lease or fami ly of leases  with s imi lar

characteristics  

·     Establ ishing whether or not i t i s  reasonably certain that an extens ion option wi l l  be exercised 

·     Cons idering whether or not i t i s  reasonably certain that a  termination option wi l l  not be exercised 

 

Exceptional costs 

The class i fication of costs  as  being exceptional , and their quantum is  viewed as  a  key management judgement. For detai ls



The class i fication of costs  as  being exceptional , and their quantum is  viewed as  a  key management judgement. For detai ls

of exceptional  costs  in the year see note 8. 

 

3.  Financial instruments - risk management 

The Group's  financial  instruments  comprise cash and l iquid resources  and various  i tems such as  trade receivables  and

trade payables  that arise directly from i ts  operations. There have been no substantive changes  in the Group's  objectives ,

pol icies  and processes  for managing those risks  or the methods used to measure them from previous  periods. The Group's

objective is  to ensure adequate funding for continued growth and expansion.  

 

Al l  the Group's  financial  instruments  are carried at amortised cost with the exception of contingent cons ideration.  There is

no materia l  di fference between the carrying and fa ir value of i ts  financial  instruments , in the current or prior year, due to

the instruments  bearing interest at fixed rates  or being of short-term nature. 

 

The Group faces  a  financial  ri sk that such financial  assets  are not recovered but a  provis ion is  made where recoverabi l i ty

is  in doubt. 

 

 

A summary of financial  instruments  held by category is  shown below: 

           Group         Company 

  2025 2024 2025 2024 
Financial  Assets  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Assets held at amortised cost         
Cash and cash equivalents  8,740 1,943 5,201 119 
Amounts  due from subs idiaries  - - - - 
Trade receivables  2,938 1,577 - - 
Total financial assets 11,678 3,520 5,201 119 

 

             Group           Company 

  2025 2024 2025 2024 
Financial  Liabi l i ties  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Amortised cost       
Trade and other payables  3,697 4,472 372 805 
Amounts  due to subs idiaries  - - 4,418 5,830 
Loans  and other borrowings  5,139 5,341 4,815 4,830 
At fair value  8,836 9,813 9,605 11,465 

Deferred cons ideration 95 - - - 
Contingent cons ideration - 1,751 - 1,751 
Total financial liabilities 8,931 11,564 9,605 13,216 
          
 

Contingent cons ideration     £'000 
At 1 April 2024     1,751 
Fair value adjustment 80 
Payment of Year 1 earn-out cons ideration (1,831) 
At 31 March 2025     - 

 

Fair value of financial instruments  

The Group has  adopted the fol lowing fa ir value hierarchy in relation to i ts  financial  instruments  that are carried in the

balance sheet at the fa ir values  at the year-end: 

 

·        Quoted prices  (unadjusted) in active markets  for identical  assets  or l iabi l i ties  (Level  1)  

·        Inputs  other than quoted prices  included within Level  1 that are observable for the asset or l iabi l i ty, ei ther directly

(that i s , as  prices) or indirectly (that i s , derived from prices) (Level  2)  

·        Inputs  for the asset or l iabi l i ty that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level  3) 

 

The fol lowing table sets  out the fa ir value of a l l  financial  assets  and l iabi l i ties  that are measured at fa i r value: 

 
  2025 2024 

Group and Company Level  1 Level  2 Level  3 Level  1 Level  2 Level  3 
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Liabilities measured at fair value              



Contingent cons ideration - - - - - 1,751 
Total - - - - - 1,751 

 

The provis ion for contingent cons ideration is  in respect of the Truststream acquis i tion and was settled in ful l  in the year. 

 

 

 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises  from the Group's  management of working capital  and the finance charges  and principal  repayments  on

its  debt instruments . It i s  the risk that the Group wi l l  encounter di fficulty in meeting i ts  financial  obl igations  as  they fa l l

due. 

 

The Group prepare cashflow forecasts  during the month and working capital  forecasts  on a monthly bas is . These al low the

Directors  to make an assessment of the cash pos ition and the future requirements  of the Group to manage l iquidity risk.

Cash resources  are managed in accordance with planned expenditure forecasts  and the Directors  have regard to the

maintenance of sufficient cash resources  to fund the Group's  operating requirements  and capital  expenditure. 

 The fol lowing table sets  out the contractual  maturi#es  (represen#ng undiscounted contractual  cashflows) of financial

l iabi l i ties : 

 Group 
Up to 3

months  
Between 3 & 12

months  
Between  

1&2 years  
Between

2&5 years  
Over 5
years  

At 31 March 2025 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade and other payables  3,697 - - - - 
Loans  and borrowings  47 142 180 4,770 - 
Contingent cons ideration - - - - - 
Total 3,744 142 180 4,770 - 
            
At 31 March 2024           
Trade and other payables  4,472 - - - - 
Loans  and borrowings  51 153 400 4,738 - 
Contingent cons ideration - 1,751 - - - 
Total 4,523 1,904 400 4,738 - 
            
            

Company 
Up to 3

months  
Between 3 & 12

months  
Between  

1&2 years  
Between

2&5 years  
Over 5
years  

At 31 March 2025 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade and other payables  372 - - - - 
Amounts  due to subs idiaries  4,418 - - - - 
Loans  and borrowings  11 33 - 4,770 - 
Contingent cons ideration - - - - - 

Total 4,801 33 - 4,770 - 
            
At 31 March 2024           
Trade and other payables  805 - - - - 
Amounts  due to subs idiaries  5,830 - - - - 
Loans  and borrowings  11 31 50 4,738 - 
Contingent cons ideration - 1,751 - - - 

Total 6,646 1,782 50 4,738 - 

 

The Amounts  due to subs idiaries  shown in 'up to 3 months ' category in the table above are payable on demand (Note 17). 

 

Interest rate risk 

The Group and Company finance their operations  through a combination of retained profi ts  and bank borrowings. The

Group's  RCF Bank loan with Santander has  an interest charge of 3.25% above bank base rate and accordingly the interest

charge the Group incurs  fluctuates  according to any movement in the bank base rates . 

 

Credit risk 

Credit risk i s  the risk of financial  loss  to the Group i f a  customer or counterparty to a  financial  instrument fa i ls  to meet i ts

contractual  obl igations  and arises  principal ly from the Group's  receivables  from customers. The Group's  exposure to

credit risk i s  influenced mainly by the individual  characteristics  of each customer. The Group receives  payments  ei ther

from automated banking receipts  or from customers  paying on direct debit or 30-day credit terms. The Group has  a

dedicated credit control  function to manage customer payments  and uses  an external  credit rating agency to assess

customers  and prospects  for creditworthiness . Doubtful  debts  are provided for in accordance with IFRS 9. For cash and

cash equivalents , the Group only uses  recognised banks  with high credit ratings  of a  negative or above on the Standard &



cash equivalents , the Group only uses  recognised banks  with high credit ratings  of a  negative or above on the Standard &

Poor's  rating system. 

 

Foreign exchange risk 

A smal l  number of suppl iers  invoice in USD. Foreign exchange exposure is  closely managed, including holding l imited

funds in USD. Alternate suppl iers  invoicing in GBP are a lso sought where suitable. 

 

Capital disclosures 

The Group monitors  capital  which comprises  a l l  components  of equity (i .e. share capital , share premium and retained

earnings). 

 

The Group's  objective when maintaining capital  are to safeguard the enti ty's  abi l i ty to continue as  a  going concern, so that

i t can provide returns  for shareholders  in future periods  and benefi ts  for other stakeholders , and to provide an adequate

return to shareholders  by pricing products  and services  commensurately with the level  of risk. The Group sets  the amount

of capital  i t requires  in proportion to risk. The Group manages  i ts  capital  s tructure and adjusts  i t in the l ight of changes  in

economic conditions  and the risk characteristics  of the underlying assets . 

 

4.  Segmental analysis 

 

The chief operating decis ion maker for the Group is  the Board of Directors . The Group reports  in two segments: 

 

·        Managed IT Services  - this  segment provides  a l l  forms of managed services  to customers  and includes

profess ional  services .  

·        Value Added Resale (VAR) - this  segment provides  a l l  forms of VAR sales  where the bus iness  sel ls  products  and

l icences  from suppl ier partners . 

 

The monthly management accounts  reported to the Board of Directors  are reviewed at a  consol idated level  with the

operating segments  representative of the bus iness  model  for growth of recurring contract income in Managed IT Services

and VAR sales  as  a  complementary bus iness  activi ty. The Board review the results  of the operating segments  at a  revenue

and gross  profi t level  s ince the Group's  management and operational  structure supports  both operational  segments  as

Group functions. In this  respect, assets  and l iabi l i ties  are a lso not reviewed on a segmental  bas is . Al l  assets  are located in

the UK. Al l  segments  are continuing operations  and there are no transactions  between segments . 

  

  2025 2025 2024 2024 

Revenue by operating segment £'000 % £'000 % 

Managed IT Services  17,696 86% 18,592 82% 

Value Added Resale  2,805 14% 4,122 18% 

Total 20,501 100% 22,714 100% 
          
 

No individual  customer accounts  for more than 7% of the Group's  revenue.   
The revenue by geographic location for where services  are del ivered to customers  is  shown below. 
 

  2025 2025 2024 2024 

  £'000 % £'000 % 
UK 20,379 99% 22,573 99% 
Rest of World 122 1% 141 1% 
  20,501 100% 22,714 100% 
 
 

      2025
£'000 

2024
£'000 

Revenue          
Managed IT Services       17,696 18,592 

Value Added Resale      2,805 4,122 

Total     20,501 22,714 

Gross Profit       
Managed IT Services       9,186 9,733 

Value Added Resale      824 663 

Total     10,010 10,396 

 
 Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers 
     
The Group has  recognised the fol lowing assets  and l iabi l i ties  related to contracts  with customers:



The Group has  recognised the fol lowing assets  and l iabi l i ties  related to contracts  with customers:
 

  2025 2024 

  £'000 £'000 

Contract l iabi l i ties  relating to deposits  from customers  3,725 2,778 

Release of contract l iabi l i ty recognised in revenue which was included in the
contract l iabi l i ty balance at the beginning of the year 1,262 1,509 
 

There were no sales  between the two bus iness  segments , and al l  revenue is  earned from external  customers. The bus iness

segments ' gross  profi t i s  reconci led to profi t before taxation as  per the consol idated income statement. The Group's

overheads are managed central ly by the Board and consequently there is  no reconci l iation to profi t before tax at a

segmental  level . The Group's  assets  are a lso managed central ly by the Board and consequently there is  no reconci l iation

between the Group's  assets  per the Statement of Financial  Pos ition and the segment assets .  

 

5.  Operating loss 
      2025 2024 
      £'000 £'000 
Operating loss  i s  after charging the fol lowing:     
Audit - Group   184 116 
Audit - Company 5 5 
Assurance related -
interim review 

  - 12 

Auditor's remuneration 189 133 

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets  538 570 
Amortisation of intangible assets  1,559 1,696 
Impairment of intangible assets  - 3,718 
Staff costs  (note 7) 6,454 5,763 
Share based payments  (note 7, 9) 197 194 
Short term lease costs  17 20 
Exceptional  i tems (note 8) 826 1,826 

 

6.  Finance income and expense  

 

Finance income  2025 2024 
  £'000 £'000 

Interest received on cash deposits  371 - 
  371 - 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Finance expense  

  2025
£'000 

2024
£'000 

Interest payable on bank loan 438 440 
Unwind of discounting on contingent cons ideration - 72 
Interest payable on lease l iabi l i ties  (9) 28 
Arrangement fee amortisation on bank loan 36 34 
Other interest 7 - 
  472 574 

 

  

7.  Staff numbers and costs 

The average monthly number of ful l -#me persons  employed by the Group, including Execu#ve Directors
during the year was: 

  2025 2024 
Technical  Support 70 70 
Sales  and Marketing 11 23 
Administration 19 18 
Total 100 111 

The aggregate payrol l  costs  including Executive Directors  were as  fol lows: 

  2025 2024 

  £'000 £'000 

Wages and salaries  5,586 5,034 

Socia l  securi ty costs  679 520 



Social  securi ty costs  679 520 

Benefi ts  in kind 23 41 

Pens ion benefi ts  166 168 

Share based payment expense 197 194 

Total 6,651 5,957 

 

The aggregate payrol l  costs  for Executive and Non-Executive Directors  were as  fol lows: 

  2025 2024 

Directors £'000 £'000 

Fees  and salaries  524 970 
Socia l  securi ty costs  55 101 

Benefi ts  in kind 25 29 

Pens ion benefi ts  contributions  17 17 

Share based payment expense 197 162 

Total 818 1,279 

 

Key management personnel  are those persons  having authori ty and responsibi l i ty for planning, directing and control l ing

the activi ties  of the Group, they are the Directors  of the Company. The emoluments , including any contractual  settlement

fees, of the highest paid Director are £231,000 (FY24: £504,038).  

 

The Group does  not operate a  defined benefi ts  pens ion scheme and Executive Directors  who are enti tled to receive pens ion

contributions  may nominate a  defined contribution scheme into which the Company makes  pens ion contributions.  The fees

relating to Non-Executive Directors  are in some cases  payable to third parties  in connection with the provis ion of their

services . The balance outstanding at 31 March 2025 was £Ni l  (FY24: £Ni l ). 

 

Within the year £460,000 of staff costs  were capital ised as  intangible assets  (FY24: £Ni l ). 

 

8.  Exceptional items 

  2025 2024 
  £'000 £'000 

CEO exit and settlement - 744 
Integration and restructuring costs  420 571 
Suppl ier charges  in dispute 236 434 
M&A projects  90 194 
Fair value adjustment of contingent cons ideration l iabi l i ty 80 (117) 
Total 826 1,826 

 

CEO exit and settlement relates  to the settlement of the former CEO's  contractual  terms.  This  i s  cons idered materia l  and

non-recurring and has  therefore been class i fied as  exceptional . 

 

The integration and restructuring costs  relate to costs  associated with the restructuring within the group which includes

the closure of the Bristol  office and offshoring of our monitoring team.  This  i s  cons idered non-recurring and has  therefore

been class i fied as  exceptional . 

 

The suppl ier charges  relate to disputed i tems for which the Company is  actively pursuing settlement and recovery of any

amounts  paid. For outstanding suppl ier charges  in dispute, we are actively seeking resolution. These i tems are cons idered

non-recurring and have therefore been class i fied as  exceptional . 

 

The M&A projects  expenditure relate to costs  associated with the evaluation of potentia l  acquis i tion targets .  This  i s

cons idered materia l  and has  therefore been class i fied as  exceptional . 

 

The adjustment to the contingent cons ideration l iabi l i ty relates  to the purchase of Truststream Securi ty Solutions  Limited in

the prior year.  This  i s  cons idered non-recurring and has  therefore been class i fied as  exceptional . 

 

Al l  of the i tems above, based upon the judgement of the management team, meet the defini tion of an exceptional  i tem as

defined within the Group's  accounting pol icies  (note 2 - Al ternative Performance Measures). 

 

9.  Share based payments  

 

New schemes 

During the year, SysGroup establ ished three new share-based plans  being: 

 



1.     Value Creation Plan (VCP) 

2.     Performance Share Plan (PSP) 

3.     Saye As  You Earn Plan (SAYE).  

 

The VCP is  an equity-settled share-based payment scheme des igned to incentivise Executive Directors  and senior

management. The VCP operates  through SysGroup Holdings  No 1 Limited (SGH), a  whol ly owned subs idiary that serves  as  a

conduit vehicle for administering the plan. Under the VCP, Participants  receive 'A' ordinary shares  in SGH at the

commencement of the performance period (August 2024 to August 2029). Participants  are enti tled to share in the value

appreciation of the Group's  ordinary shares  based on achieving speci fied performance hurdles . Settlement occurs  through

either the issuance of SysGroup ordinary shares  or cash equivalent, at the Company's  discretion. The plan includes  service

conditions  (continued employment) and market-based performance conditions  (share price hurdles).  

 

Under the PSP, el igible employees  receive options  that vest subject to continued employment and the achievement of

earnings  per share (EPS) performance targets  measured over a  three-year period. The options  vest on the third anniversary

of the grant date but cannot be exercised unti l  the fi fth anniversary for employees  who are a lso in the VCP, creating an

effective five-year service condition. Awards  are subject to forfei ture i f the employee ceases  to be in relevant employment

before the exercise period commences. 

For employees  who also participate in VCP, the number of PSP shares  that may be acquired is  reduced by any value

received under the VCP. The PSP provides  the Group with flexibi l i ty to settle awards  ei ther through the issue of new shares

or through cash payments  equivalent to the gain on exercise. However, the Group intends to settle awards  through the issue

of shares , and the awards  are therefore accounted for as  equity-settled share-based payments . 

 

Under the SAYE scheme, employees  are granted options  to purchase ordinary shares  at a  discount to the market price at the

date of invi tation. Participation requires  employees  to enter into a  savings  contract with monthly contributions  ranging

from £5 to £500 over a  3-year or 5-year period. Options  are granted with an exercise price set at not less  than 80% of the

market value of the Group's  shares  on the date invitations  are issued. The options  vest upon completion of the relevant

savings  contract period and continued employment with the Company. Vested options  may be exercised within s ix months

of the bonus date, after which they lapse.  SAYE awards  are accounted for as  equity-settled share-based payments  as  they

are settled through the issuance of new ordinary shares  or transfer of existing shares. 

 

Th e k ey  term s  a n d  c o n d i t i o n s  o f  th e n ew  s h a re-b a s ed  a rra n g em en ts  a re a s  f o l l o w s :                                                 

 

 VCP PSP SAYE 

Grant Date August 2024 August 2024 October 2024 

Vesting Period 5 years  (August 2024 to
August 2029) 

5 years  (Employees  part of both
PSP and VCP arrangement) 
3 years  (Employees  part of only
PSP arrangement) 

3 years  

Settlement Method Equity-seRled (En#ty's
choice between shares  or
cash) 

Equity-seRled (En#ty's  choice
between shares  or cash) 

Equity-seRled (En#ty's
choice between shares
or cash) 

Performance
Hurdles  

£0.60 (15% value sharing),
£2.25 (20% value sharing),
£3.00 (25% value sharing) 

25% of the award vests  at EP S of
2.16 pence 
100% of the award vests  at EP S of
2.95 pence 
Ves#ng occurs  on a straight-l ine
bas is  between these two points  
 

Not Appl icable 

Service Condition Con#nuous employment
unti l  August 2029 

Con#nuous employment un#l
August 2029 (Employees  part of
both PSP and VCP arrangement) 
Con#nuous employment un#l
August 2027 (Employees  part of
only PSP arrangement) 

Continuous employment
unti l  August 2027 (3 year
saving plan) 

Other Condition 50% of shares  subject to 1-
year holding period 

Not Appl icable Monthly contribu#on
requirement to the
Saving Plan 

Number of
Participants  

2 Execu#ve Directors  and 3
senior management. 

2 Execu#ve Directors  and 13
employees. 

2 Execu#ve Directors
and 28 employees. 

 

A reconci l iation of award movements  over the year is  shown below: 

Grant
date 

Exercise
period 

Exercise
price 

(£) 

At 31
March
2024 

Granted Forfeited Expired /
Withdrawn 

Exercised At 31 March
2025 

VCP* 

20 August
2024 

20 August
2029 - 20
August
2034  

-  - 230  - (230) - - 



2034  
21 March
2025 

20 August
2029 - 20
August
2034  

- - 230 - - - 230 

PSP 

20 August
2024 

20 August
2027 - 20
August
2034 

-  - 624,600  (36,364) - - 588,236 

20 August
2024 

20 August
2029 - 20
August
2034 

0.60  - 1,328,451  - - - 1,328,451  

SAYE 

1 O ctober
2024 

1 O ctober
2027 - 1
Apri l
2028  

0.26 - 777,664  (201,194) - - 576,470 

 

* The VCP share scheme represents awards granted of SGH as a reference unit. Each reference unit represents an entitlement to

participate in the value appreciation of one SysGroup ordinary share. The actual number of SysGroup shares issued upon

settlement will vary based on share price performance and hurdle achievement.  

Participants were originally granted awards over 'A' Ordinary Shares in SGH on 20 August 2024. Under the original terms of the

arrangement, participants were required to pay subscription monies to acquire their allocated shares, and this subscription

obligation was incorporated into the fair value calculation at the grant date, effectively reducing the fair value of the awards by

the amount participants were required to contribute.  Although the awards were granted the  'A' Ordinary Shares were not issued

at that time, nor have they been issued subsequently.  

  

On 21 March 2025, SysGroup's Remuneration Committee approved a modification to the structure of the VCP.  Under the revised

arrangement, the  Conditional Share awards would be delivered in the form of a nil-cost  share option and the requirement for

participants to pay subscription monies was eliminated. This modification was implemented to address practical and

administrative complexities associated with collecting subscription payments and to better align the incentive arrangement with

its intended motivational objectives. Accordingly, the 'A' Ordinary Shares are presented as granted (but unissued) and

subsequently withdrawn in the summary table above, reflecting their replacement with the nil-cost share options. The share

options balance, therefore, effectively represents the change from the original 'A'Ordinary Shares to share options pursuant to the

modified arrangement.  

  

The modification has been accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2, which requires recognition of any incremental fair value

created by the modification. Since participants no longer need to pay subscription monies, the fair value of their awards has

increased compared to the original arrangement. This incremental fair value represents additional economic benefit being

provided to participants and will be recognised as share-based payment expense over the remaining vesting period, which

continues to be five years from the original grant date of 20 August 2024.  

 

VCP awards  were valued us ing the Monte Carlo option pricing model . Performance conditions  were included in the fa ir

value calculations, which were based on observable market prices  at grant date. Al l  options  granted under VCP have an

exercise price of £Ni l . Us ing a  Monte Carlo model , the total  fa i r value of the awards  with a  market condition is  calculated

to be £1.7m, resulting in £7.4k per share (before adjustment for the subscription price payable by participants  in the VCP): 

 

 

The fa ir value per awards  granted and the assumptions  used in the calculation are as  fol lows: 

 

Model inputs and fair value    

Model  Monte Carlo 

Grant date 20/08/2024 

Exercise price (£) 0.00 

Share price (£) 0.36 

Expected volati l i ty (%) 39.4% 

Risk free rate (%) 3.7% 

Time to vest (years) 4.9 

Total fair value (£)             1,714,900  

Number of shares  230 

Fair value per Ordinary 'A' Share (£) 7,456  



Fair value per Ordinary 'A' Share (£) 7,456  
 

PSP awards  were valued us ing the Black Scholes  model . The fa ir value of the awards  with non-market conditions  was

calculated as  £0.36 per award. For the individuals  that are participants  in both the VCP and PSP, a  separate PSP fa ir value

is  calculated, us ing a  series  of Black Scholes  models  which captures  the negative market condition relating to the clawback

of PSP awards  where the VCP vests . 

 

  M o d el  i n p u ts  a n d  f a i r v a l u e                          
Model Black Scholes 
Grant date 20/08/2024 
Exercise price (£) 0.00 
Share price (£) 0.36 
Expected volatility (%) 38.8% 
Risk free rate (%) 3.8% 
Time to vest (years) 3.0 

F a i r v a l u e p er a w a rd  ( £ )                 
                            

0 .3 6       
Number of options 624,600 
To ta l  f a i r v a l u e ( £ )                 2 2 4 ,8 5 6          

 

 M o d el  i n p u ts  a n d  f a i r v a l u e                       

B S  A 
( p a rt i c i p a n ts         
i n  P S P  o n l y )           

B S  B 
( p a rt i c i p a n ts         

i n  P S P  a n d      
V C P )     

Model Black Scholes Black Scholes 
Grant date 20/08/2024 20/08/2024 
Exercise price (£) 0 0.60 
Share price (£) 0.36 0.36 
Expected volatility (%) 39.4% 39.4% 
Risk free rate (%) 3.7% 3.7% 
Time to vest (years) 5.0 5.0 

F a i r v a l u e f ro m  B S  m o d el                  
                            

0 .3 6       
                            

0 .0 9       

B S  A  m i n u s  B S  B               
                            

0 .2 7       
Number of options 1,328,451 
To ta l  f a i r v a l u e ( £ )                    3 5 8 ,6 8 2          

 

Volatility assumption in the models is based on the observed volatility of SysGroup and a set of listed comparable peer company

share prices over a historical period consistent with the expected time to exercise at the valuation date.  

SAYE awards  were valued us ing the Black Scholes  model . Al l  options  granted under SAYE have an exercise price of £0.26.

Fair value of the options  were calculated to be £0.14 for the three-year SAYE scheme and £0.17 per option for the five-year

SAYE scheme. 

 

The fa ir value per award(s) granted and the assumptions  used in the calculation are as  fol lows: 

 

Model inputs and fair value  3 year scheme  5 year scheme  
Model  Black Scholes  Black Scholes  

Grant date 
 

01/10/2024 
 

01/10/2024 
Exercise price (£) 0.26 0.26 
Share price (£) 0.325 0.325 
Expected volati l i ty (%) 38.8% 39.4% 
Risk free rate (%) 3.8% 3.7% 
Time to vest (years) 3.0 5.0 
Fair value per award (£)                    0.14                     0.17  
 

H i s to ri c  s c h em es             

The EMI and Executive LTIP schemes from prior years still have historic participants but will not be used as part of the Group's

incentive structure going forwards, with the only activity in the year being options lapsing (due to participants leaving the Group)

or the exercise of options (Executive LTIP only). 

 

EM I s c h em e       

Share options can be granted to employees of the Group at the discretion of and with approval from the Remuneration

Committee. For EMI share options to vest the employee must be employed by the Group at the vesting date. The weighted

average exercise price of options in issue is 42.2p per share.

 

      No. of Ordinary Shares 



Grant date Exercise period 
Exercise

price 
At 31 March

2024 Granted Waived 
At 31 March

2025 
21/02/2016 21/02/19 to 20/02/26 55.2p 5,000 - - 5,000 
26/11/2018 26/11/21 to 25/11/28 42.5p 150,000 - (60,000) 90,000 
06/04/2021 06/04/24 to 05/04/31 41.0p 131,000 - (56,000) 75,000 
Total     286,000 - (116,000) 170,000 

 

The inputs  to the share valuation model  uti l i sed at the grant of the option are shown in the table below. Management has

determined volati l i ty us ing their knowledge of the bus iness . The options  have been valued us ing the Black Scholes  method

and us ing the fol lowing assumptions: 

 

Number of instruments
granted 

11,875 215,000 206,000 

Grant date 21-Feb16 26-Nov18 06-Apr21 

Expiry date 20-Feb26 25-Nov28 05-Apr31 

Contract term (years) 
10 10 10 

Exercise price 55.2p 42.5p 41.0p 

Share price at granting 
70.8p 42.5p 41.0p 

Annual  risk-free rate (%) 
0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 

Annual  expected dividend
yield (%) 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Volati l i ty (%) 27% 27% 27% 

Fair value per grant
instrument 

30.2p 17.9p 26.0p 

 

 

Executive LTIP options 

The Remuneration Committee is  responsible for establ ishing the Executive LTIP Schemes and also sets  the targets  by which

the performance of the Executive Directors  i s  measured. The award of share options  to the Executive Directors  i s  governed

by the LTIP Scheme Rules . Further information on the Schemes is  presented in the Directors ' Remuneration report. The

weighted average exercise price of options  in issue is  1.0p per share.  

 

      No. of Ordinary Shares 

Grant date Exercise period 
Exercise

price 
At 31 March

2024 Granted Exercised 
At 31 March

2025 
28/06/2018 28/06/21 to 27/06/28 1.0p - - - 

6/07/2018 16/07/21 to 15/07/28 1.0p 450,000 - (300,000) 150,000 

15/07/2019 15/07/22 to 14/07/29 1.0p 150,000 - - 150,000 

08/07/2020 08/07/22 to 07/07/30 1.0p 150,000 - - 150,000 

21/06/2021 21/06/23 to 20/06/31 1.0p 107,805 - - 107,805 

21/06/2022 21/06/24 to 20/06/32 1.0p 170,406 - - 170,406 

17/04/2023 17/04/25 to 16/04/33 1.0p 204,024 - - 204,024 

Total     1,232,235 - (300,000) 932,235 

 

The inputs  to the share valuation model  uti l i sed at the grant of the option are shown in the table below. Management has

determined volati l i ty us ing their knowledge of the bus iness . The options  have been valued us ing the Black Scholes  method

and us ing the fol lowing assumptions: 

 

Number of
instruments  granted 

750,000 450,000 400,000 400,000 287,480 454,416 566,733 

Grant date 28-Jun-18 16-Jul -18 15-Jul -19 08-Jul -20 21-Jun-21 21-Jun-22 17-Apr-23 
Expiry date 27-Jun-28 15-Jul -28 14-Jul -29 07-Jul -30 20-Jun-31 20-Jun-32 16-Apr-33 
Contract term
(years) 

10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Exercise price 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 1.0p 
Share price at
granting 

41.5p 46.5p 42.0p 33.0p 42.0p 27.0p 27.5p 

Annual  risk-free rate
(%) 

0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 4.0% 4.0% 

Annual  expected
dividend yield (%) 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Volati l i ty (%) 27% 27% 27% 27% 27% 41% 41% 

Fair value per grant 40.9p 43.7p 41.4p 32.0p 41.0p 26.0p 26.0p 



Fair value per grant
instrument 

40.9p 43.7p 41.4p 32.0p 41.0p 26.0p 26.0p 

 

The total  charge for the year relating to employee share-based payment plans  was  £197,408 (2024: £194,000), a l l  of which

related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions. 

 

 10.  Acquisitions 

 

Crossword Consulting Limited (rebranded as Truststream Cybersecurity Limited) 

 

On 18 November 2024 the Group acquired the trade, assets  and speci fic l iabi l i ties  of Crossword Consulting Limited (in

administration) for ini tia l  cash cons ideration of £311,000, with deferred cons ideration of  £127,000 to be paid within one

year (both funded by the Group's  cash reserves). Crossword Consulting Limited is  a  recognised leader in cybersecuri ty

consulting, offering special ised services  such as  vi rtual  CISO ('vCISO') support and Penetration Testing to medium and

large enterprises . 

 

This  acquis i tion strengthens our capabi l i ties  with the addition of 12 seasoned cybersecuri ty consultants , who wi l l  expand

SysGroup's  customer offerings  in cybersecuri ty and compl iance. CCL brings  a  diverse cl ient base of customers, including

FTSE 100, FTSE 250, and S&P-l is ted companies , which presents  new cross-sel l  opportunities  across  multiple sectors  for the

Group. 

 

 
  Book value Fair value adj  Fair value 
Recognised amounts  of net assets  acquired
and l iabi l i ties  assumed £'000s  £'000s  £'000s  
Customer relationships  - 328 328 
Trade and other receivables  117 - 117 
Trade and other payables  (282) - (282) 
Contract l iabi l i ties  (37) - (37) 
Deferred tax - (82) (82) 
Identi fiable net assets  44 
Goodwi l l      394 
Total  net assets  438 
Satis fied by:       
Cash cons ideration - paid on acquis i tion     311 
Deferred cons ideration     127 
Total  cons ideration 438 
 

The Directors  have cons idered the intangible assets  acquired for the Crossword Consulting Limited acquis i tion and have

recognised an intangible asset for customer relationships . This  has  been calculated us ing a  discounted cashflow method,

based upon the estimated level  of profi t to be generated from the customer bases  acquired. A post tax discount rate of

10.8% was used in the valuation and the customer relationships  are being amortised over their estimated useful  l i fe of 10

years . The goodwi l l  aris ing on the acquis i tion is  attributable to the technical  ski l l s  of the workforce and the cross-sel l ing

opportunities  achievable from combining the acquired customer bases  and trade with the existing group. 

 

The goodwi l l  and intangible assets  of Crossword Consulting Limited have been al located to a  new CGU cal led 'Truststream

Cybersecuri ty Limited'. This  i s  fol lowing the rebranding of the bus iness  to 'Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited' post

acquis i tion. 

 

The Group incurred profess ional  fees  of £53,000 in relation to the acquis i tion. These costs  are included as  Exceptional

costs  in the Group's  consol idated statement of comprehensive income. 

 

No cash was acquired as  part of the acquis i tion.  Further, no fa ir value adjustments  have been made to the trade and other

receivables  acquired (which relate entirely to accrued income). Al l  amounts  are cons idered col lectable. Of the total

deferred cons ideration of £127k, £32k was paid in the year, leaving a  balance unpaid at 31 March 2025 of £95k. 

 

Crossword Consulting Limited contributed £0.9m to Group revenue and £0.2m profi t before tax for the 12 month period to

31 March 2025. If the acquis i tion had been made on 1 Apri l  2024, then Crossword Consulting Limited would have

contributed £2.1m of revenue and £0.5m of profi t before tax to the Group. This  would mean the Group's  combined revenue

and loss  before tax would have been £21.7m and (£1.8m) respectively. 

 

 11.  Earnings per share  

 

  2025 2024 



  2025 2024 

(Loss) for the financial  year attributable to shareholders  (£1,834,000) (£5,900,000) 
Adjusted (loss)/profi t for the financial  year (£233,000) £1,010,000 
Weighted number of i ssued equity shares   79,829,723 48,923,389 
Weighted number of equity shares  for di luted EPS calculation 82,948,985 50,710,251 
Adjusted bas ic earnings  per share (pence) 0.3p 2.1p 
Bas ic earnings  per share (pence) (2.3)p (12.1)p 
Di luted earnings  per share (pence) (2.3)p (12.1)p 
  

  
2025 

 
£'000 

2024 
 

£'000 
(Loss) after tax used for bas ic earnings  per share (1,834) (5,900) 
Amortisation of intangible assets  1,559 1,696 
Impairment of intangible assets  - 3,718 
Exceptional  i tems 826 1,826 
Share based payments  197 194 
Share scheme set-up costs  174 - 

Total add back (pre-tax) 2,756 7,434 
Tax adjustments  (689) (929) 
Adjusted profit used for adjusted earnings per share  233 605 

 

12.  Taxation 

  2025 2024 

Current tax £'000 £'000 

Current tax - current year 16 - 

Adjustments  in respect of prior years  (2) (84) 
Total current tax charge  14 (84) 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax - timing di fferences  (491) (609) 

Adjustments  in respect of prior years  (139) 23 

Total deferred tax (630) (586) 

Total tax (credit) (616) (670) 

 
The effective tax rate for the year to 31 March 2025 is  higher (2024: lower) than the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK. The di fferences  are explained below: 

  

  
2025 

 
2024 

   
  £'000 £'000   
(Loss) on ordinary activities before tax (2,450) (6,570)   
(Loss) on ordinary activi ties  before taxation multipl ied
by the standard rate of UK corporation tax of 25% (612) (1,643)   
Effects of:   
Expenses  not deductible 456 274   
Income not taxable - 899   
Short term timing di fferences  16 374 
Deferred tax on share-based payments  - 31 
Other deferred tax movements  (333) (368) 
Deferred tax (charged)/credited directly to equity 13 - 
Adjustments  in respect of prior years  (141) (61) 
Other permanent di fferences  (15) (177)   
Total tax (credit) (616) (670)   

 
 
The Group recognised deferred tax assets  and l iabi l i ties  as  fol lows:  

  2025 2024   
  £'000 £'000   

Deferred tax on customer relationships  - (1,042)   
Deferred tax asset on share-based payments  - 100 
Fixed asset timing di fferences  206 (196) 
Short term timing di fferences  (134) 21   
Losses  (574) 268 
Other 790 - 
Deferred tax liability 288 (849)   



Deferred tax liability 288 (849)   
        

Recognition of deferred tax assets  i s  restricted to those instances  where i t i s  highly probable that
rel ief against taxable profi t wi l l  be avai lable. There are no unrecognised deferred tax assets .   

 
  
Deferred tax balances  are recognised at 25% (2024: 25%): 
 

  Losses Fixed asset
timing

differences 

Short term
timing

differences 
Share based

payments 
Customer

relationships Total 
  £'000 £'000     £'000 £'000 

Balance at 1 Apri l  2024 268 (197) 22 100 (1,042) (849) 

Movement in deferred tax
on share-based payments  

- - - 19 - 19 

Movement in deferred tax
on share-based payment
recognised in equity 
 

- - - 12 12 

Deferred tax on bus iness
acquis i tion 
 

- - - - (82) (82) 

Movement in deferred tax
on amortisation of
intangible assets  

- 35 - - 333 368 

Fixed asset and other
timing di fferences  

272 (9) (19) - - 244 

Balance at 31 March 2025 540 (171) 3 131 (791) (288) 

 

 

13.  Intangible assets 

Systems
Development 

Software
l icences  

Customer
relationships  

Pos itive
goodwi l l  Total  

Group cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 2023 1,011 - 12,709 21,666 35,386 

Additions  109 - - - 109 

Impairment - - - (3,718) (3,718) 

At 31 March 2024 1,120 - 12,709 17,948 31,777 

At 1 April 2024 1,120 - 12,709 17,948 31,777 

Additions  570 - 328 394 1,292 

At 31 March 2025 1,690 - 13,037 18,342 33,069 

Accumulated amortisation      

At 1 April 2023 356 - 7,069 - 7,425 

Charge for the year 224 - 1,472 - 1,696 

At 31 March 2024 580 - 8,541 - 9,121 

At 1 April 2024 580 - 8,541 - 9,121 

Charge for the year 226 - 1,333 - 1,559 

At 31 March 2025 806 - 9,874 - 10,680 

            

Net book value           

At 31 March 2024 540 - 4,168 17,948 22,656 

At 31 March 2025 884 - 3,163 18,342 22,389 

 

      
Systems

Development Total  
Company cost       £'000 £'000 
At 1 April 2023       28 28 
Additions        37 37 
At 31 March 2024       65 65 
Additions  569 569 
At 31 March 2025 634 634 
          



          
  

Accumulated amortisation          
At 1 April 2023       2 2 
Charge for the year       16 16 
At 31 March 2024       18 18 
Charge for the year 17 17 
At 31 March 2025 35 35 
            
Net book value           
At 31 March 2024       47 47 
At 31 March 2025       599 599 

 

Al l  amortisation and impairment charges  are included in the depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial

assets  class i fication, which is  disclosed as  administrative expenses  in the statement of comprehensive income. Customer

relationships  have a remaining amortisation period of between two and five years . 

 

 

Cash-generating units ('CGUs')  

Goodwi l l  and intangible assets  are a l located to CGUs in order to be assessed for potentia l  impairment. The Group has  a

core CGU of 'Managed IT Services ' and as  the Group acquires  new bus inesses  they form their own CGU unti l  they have been

integrated into the Group's  core operational  structure.  

  

The Group has  a  Senior Leadership Team that manages  the SysGroup bus iness  within a  s ingle operational  and del ivery

structure. Whi lst the Truststream and Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited bus inesses  have been integrated within the

SysGroup leadership structure and onto the Group system platforms, the bus inesses  continue to operate their own cash

transactions  and balances  and therefore remain as  distinct cash-generating units  of the Group. As  such, the Directors

consider Truststream and Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited to be a separate CGUs.  

  

The al location of goodwi l l  and carrying amounts  of assets  for each CGU is  as  fol lows: 

 

  Allocation of goodwill Carrying value of assets 

  2025 2024 2025 2024 
  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Managed IT Services  12,346 12,346 14,817 17,213 
Truststream Securi ty Solutions  5,602 5,602 5,892 6,583 
Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited 394 - 850 - 
Total 18,342 17,948 21,559 23,796 
 

 

Impairment review  

When assess ing impairment, the recoverable amount of each CGU is  based on value-in-use calculations  (VIU). VIU

calculations  are an area of materia l  management estimate as  set out in note 2. These calculations  require the use of

estimates, speci fical ly: post-tax cash flow projections; long-term growth rates; and a post-tax discount rate. Cash flow

projections  are based on the Group's  budget for the forthcoming financial  year which has  been approved by the Board. 

 

The VIU calculation is  determined based on a risk adjusted discounted cash flow bas is  prepared for each individual  cash-

generating unit. Cash flows beyond the forthcoming financial  year use estimated growth rates  which are stated below. The

assumptions  for growth rates  and margins  are based on management's  experience of growth and knowledge of the industry

sector, markets  and our own internal  opportunities  for growth. The projections  beyond five years  use an estimated long-

term growth rate of 2.0% (FY24: 2.0%) for net post tax cash flows. This  represents  management's  best estimate of a  long-

term annual  growth rate a l igned to an assessment of long-term GDP growth rates . A higher sector-speci fic growth rate

would be a val id a l ternative estimate. A di fferent set of assumptions  may be more appropriate in future years  dependent on

changes  in the macroeconomic environment. 

 

The discount rates  used are based on management's  calculation of the WACC us ing the capital  asset pricing model  to

calculate the cost of equity. The same rate is  used for each CGU in the VIU calculation, and the rates  reflect management's

assessment on the level  of relative risk in each respective CGU. Discount rates  can change relatively quickly for reasons

both ins ide and outs ide management control . Those outs ide management direct control  or influence include changes  in the

Group's  Beta, changes  in risk-free rates  of return and changes  in Equity Risk Premia. Matters  ins ide management control

are the del ivery of performance in l ine with plans  or budgets  and the production of high or low risk plans. 

 

 At the year-end reporting date, goodwi l l  was  reviewed for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets ' and

no impairment has  been recorded against the legacy CGU.   



no impairment has  been recorded against the legacy CGU.   

 

Managed IT Services CGU 

 The Managed IT Services  CGU goodwi l l  i s  comprised of acquis i tions  dating from 2016 to 2022, as  l i s ted below: 

System Profess ional  - 2016 

Rockford IT - 2017 

Certus  IT - 2019 

Hub Network - 2020 

Orchard IT - 2022 

  

Based upon a conservative assessment of the future performance of these acquis i tions  (being the 'Managed IT Services

CGU'), which includes  risk adjusting forecasted cash flows, management's  view is  that the CGU is  not impaired.  

 

The VIU model  i s  sens itive to changes  in key assumptions  and changes  in these assumptions  can lead to s igni ficant

changes  in the VIU:  

 

·     The impairment model  assumes a fa l l  in revenue of 5.0% in Year 1, fol lowed by revenue growth of 7% in Years  2 to

5 (in l ine with I T managed service sector industry expecta#ons). I f Year 1 revenue growth was reduced by a  further

1%, the headroom would decrease by £0.6m, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f Year 1 revenue

growth was increased by 1%, then headroom would increase by £0.6m. 

·     I f the gross  margin percentage of 48% is  reduced by 1% then the VI U would reduce by £1.3m and an impairment of

£0.4m would be required, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the gross  margin percentage was

increased by 1%, then headroom would increase by £1.3m. 

·     I f the discount rate of 11.8% increased by 1% then the VI U would reduce by £1.6m and an impairment of £0.7m

would be required, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the discount rate was  increased by 1%,

then headroom would increase by £1.9m. 

 

Management is  comfortable with the revenue growth rates , gross  margin percentage and discount rate used in the VIU

model . 

 

Truststream CGU 

The Truststream CGU is  comprised of only Truststream Securi ty Solutions, which was acquired in 2022. Based upon a

conservative assessment of the future performance, which includes  risk adjusting forecasted cash flows, management's

view is  that the CGU is  not impaired.  

 

The VIU model  i s  sens itive to changes  in key assumptions  and changes  in these assumptions  can lead to s igni ficant

changes  in the VIU:  

 

·     The impairment model  assumes flat revenue in Year 1, fol lowed by revenue growth of 11.8% in years  2 to 5 (in l ine

with industry expecta#ons). I f Year 1 revenue growth was reduced by 1%, headroom would decrease by £0.3m,

assuming no changes  in other assumptions. Equal ly, i f Year 1 revenue growth was increased by 1%, then headroom

would increase by £0.3m. 

·     I f the gross  margin percentage of 49% is  reduced by 1% then the VI U would reduce by £0.6m, but s#l l  leaving

£5.1m of headroom, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the gross  margin percentage was

increased by 1%, then the headroom would increase by £0.6m. 

·     I f the discount rate of 11.8% increased by 1% then the VI U would reduce by £1.2m but s#l l  leaving £4.6m of

headroom, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the discount rate was  decreased by 1%, then

headroom would increase by £1.4m. 

 

Management is  comfortable with the revenue growth rates , gross  margin percentage and discount rate used in the VIU

model . 

 

Truststream Cybersecurity Limited CGU 

The trade and assets  of Crossword Consulting Limited were acquired by the Group in November 2024 and has  s ince been

rebranded as  Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited. Based upon an assessment of the future performance, which includes  risk

adjusting forecasted cash flows, management's  view is  that the CGU is  not impaired. 

 

The VIU model  i s  sens itive to changes  in key assumptions  and changes  in these assumptions  can lead to s igni ficant

changes  in the VIU:  

 



·     The risk adjusted impairment model  assumes flat annual ised revenue in Year 1, fol lowed by revenue growth of

10.4% in Years  2 to 5 (in l ine with industry expecta#ons). I f Year 1 revenue growth was reduced by 1%, headroom

would remain cons istent. 

·     I f the gross  margin percentage of 69% is  reduced by 1% then then the VI U would reduce to £Ni l , assuming no

changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the gross  margin percentage was increased by 1%, then the headroom

would increase by £0.2m. 

·     I f the discount rate of 11.8% increased by 1% then the VI U would reduce by £0.1m but s#l l  leaving £0.1m of

headroom, assuming no changes  in other assump#ons. Equal ly, i f the discount rate was  decreased by 1%, then

headroom would increase by £0.1m. 

 

Management is  comfortable with the revenue growth rates , gross  margin percentage and discount rate used in the VIU

model . 

 

The assumptions used for the impairment review are detailed below: 
 

  

Legacy
Managed IT

Services  
2025 

Truststream
Securi ty

Solutions  

Truststream
Cybersecuri ty Limited 

Discount rate post-tax   11.80% 11.80% 11.80% 
Revenue growth rate Year 2 to Year 5   7.00% 11.80% 10.40% 
Terminal  growth rate     2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

 
2024 

    

Discount rate post-tax   10.30% 10.30% - 
Revenue growth rate Year 2 to Year 5   3.50% 6.00% - 
Terminal  growth rate   2.00% 2.00% - 

 

 

14.  Property, plant and equipment 

 

  Office
Equipment 

Right of Use Lease Freehold
Property 

Total  

Group cost £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
At 1 April 2023 1,200 1,265 382 2,847 
Additions  450 - - 450 
Disposals  - - - - 
At 31 March 2024 1,650 1,265 382 3,297 
At 1 April 2024 1,650 1,265 382 3,297 
Additions  179 - - 179 
Disposals  - (114) - (114) 
At 31 March 2025 1,829 1,151 382 3,362 

 

Accumulated depreciation         
At 1 April 2023 579 269 33 881 
Charge for the year 317 245 8 570 
Disposals  - - - - 
At 31 March 2024 896 514 41 1,451 
At 1 April 2024 896 514 41 1,451 
Charge for the year 323 207 8 538 
Disposals  - (68) - (68) 
At 31 March 2025 1,219 653 49 1,921 

          
Net book value         
At 31 March 2024 754 751 341 1,846 
At 31 March 2025 610 498 333 1,441 

 

 

 

Office
Equipment 

Right of Use
Lease 

  

Total  

Company cost £'000 £'000 £'000 

At 1 April 2023 172 393 565 
Additions  163 - 163 
Disposals  - - - 
At 31 March 2024 335 393 728 
At 1 April 2024 335 393 728 



At 1 April 2024 335 393 728 
Additions  23 - 23 
Disposals  - - - 
At 31 March 2025 358 393 751 

 

Accumulated depreciation       
At 1 April 2023 36 204 240 
Charge for the year 82 76 158 
Disposals  - - - 
At 31 March 2024 118 280 398 
At 1 April 2024 118 280 398 
Charge for the year 87 54 141 
Disposals  - - - 
At 31 March 2025 205 334 539 
 
 
Net book value 
At 31 March 2024 217 113 330 
At 31 March 2025 153 59 212 

 

15.  Investments 

  2025 2024 

Company £'000 £'000 
At start of year 26,399 34,034 

Acquis i tions   - - 

Investment in subs idiaries  3 - 

Impairment (440) (7,635) 

At 31 March 25,962 26,399 

 

The recoverable amounts  have been determined from discounted cash flow calcula#ons. The principal  assump#ons can be

found in note (13). 

 

I n l ine with the ra#onale and conclus ions  drawn in note 13 regarding the Legacy Managed I T Services  CGU, an impairment

of the Sys Group Trading Limited investment of £0.4m is  required and has  been recorded in the period. Fol lowing this

impairment, the investment balance in Sys Group Trading Limited is  £18.1m. The remaining balance of £7.9m relates  to

Truststream Securi ty Solutions  Limited. 

 

 

The Company's  subs idiary undertakings  a l l  of which are whol ly owned and included in the consol idated
accounts  are: 

      
Undertakings  Registration Principal  activi ty 

SysGroup Trading Limited England & Wales  Managed IT Services  

Truststream Securi ty Solutions  Limited Scotland Managed IT Services  

Certus  IT Limited England & Wales  Non-trading 
Hub Network Services  Limited England & Wales  Non-trading 

Netplan LLC* USA Non-trading 

Orchard Computers  Limited England & Wales  Dormant  

Independent Network Solutions  Limited England & Wales  Non-trading 

Netplan Internet Solutions  Limited England & Wales  Dormant  

Rockford IT Limited England & Wales  Dormant  

System Profess ional  Limited England & Wales  Dormant  

SysGroup (DIS) Limited England & Wales  Dormant  

SysGroup Holding (No.1) Limited** England & Wales  Holding 

Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited*** England & Wales  Cybersecuri ty Consultancy 

 

* Netplan LLC is  a  whol ly owned subs idiary of Netplan Internet Solutions  Limited 

** SysGroup Holding (No.1) Limited was incorporated as  a  ful ly owned subs idiary of SysGroup plc on 6 August 2024. 

*** Truststream Cybersecuri ty Limited was incorporated as  a  ful ly owned subs idiary of Sys Group Holding (No.1) on 29

October 2024. See note 10 for detai ls  regarding i ts  acquis i tion of the trade and assets  from Crossword Consulting Limited. 

 

The registered office of a l l  subs idiaries  i s  the same as  the registered office of the parent Company with the exception of: 



The registered office of a l l  subs idiaries  i s  the same as  the registered office of the parent Company with the exception of: 

 

Netplan LLC                                              Truststream Security Solutions Limited 

whose registered office is :                       whose registered office is : 

c/o USA Corporate Services  Inc                    8th Floor, Sugar Bond House 

19 West 34th Street, Suite 1018,                 Anderson Place, Leith, Edinburgh 

New York, 10001, USA                                Scotland EH6 5NP 

 

 16. Trade and other receivables 

 

  Group Company Group Company 
  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Amounts  due within one year £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade debtors  2,938 - 1,577 - 
Amounts  due from subs idiaries  - 1,076 - - 
Other debtors  39 24 26 - 
Corporation tax asset 30 - 84 - 
Prepayments  and accrued income 2,369 97 2,316 105 
Total 5,376 1,197 4,003 105 
          
Amounts  due from subs idiaries  are due on demand and incur no interest. 

 

The carrying value of trade and other receivables  approximates  to their fa i r value. 

 

 

 

  Group Company Group Company 
  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Debtor impairment  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade debtors  3,132 - 1,692 - 
Impairment provis ion (194) - (115) - 
Total 2,938 - 1,577 - 

 

Amounts  due from subs idiaries  are due on demand and incur no interest. 

 

The carrying value of trade and other receivables  approximates  to their fa i r value. 

 

The Group have appl ied the s impl i fied approach to calculate i ts  impairment of trade receivables . In completing this  review,

the Group have segregated i ts  receivables  into categories  based on the number of days  past due for each invoice and used

this  to estimate the expected l i fetime credit loss , with the historic credit losses  being adjusted for expected forward

cashflows given the current economic environment. 

 

  Group Company 
              

  Current Over 1 month
past due  

Total Current Over 1 month
past due  

Total 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade debtors  998 2,134 3,132 - - - 
Expected credit loss  - (194) (194) - - - 
Net carrying amount 998 1,940 2,938 - - - 

 

17.  Trade and other payables 
  Group Company Group Company 
  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Amounts  due within one year £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Trade payables  2,666 45 3,132 293 
Amounts  due to subs idiaries  - 5,494 - 5,830 
Accruals  1,031 327 1,340 512 
Total financial liabilities, excluding loans and
borrowings measured at amortised cost 

3,697 5,866 4,472 6,635 

Corporation tax - - - - 
Other taxes  and socia l  securi ty costs  977 165 341 82 
 Total 4,674 6,031 4,813 6,717 
 
Amounts  due to subs idiaries  are due on demand and incur no interest charge.  
  



  
Contingent consideration   Group Company Group Company 

2025 2025 2024 2024 
Amounts due within one year £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Contingent cons ideration - - 1,751 1,751 
Amounts due after one year 
Contingent cons ideration - - - - 
Discounted value - - - - 
Discounted contingent consideration - - - - 

 

In FY24, the contingent cons ideration is  s tated at i ts  discounted fa ir value and was paid in ful l  in FY25. 

 

To the extent trade payables  and other payables  are not carried at fa i r value in the consol idated balance sheet, book value

approximates  to fa i r value at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024. The maturi ty of the financial  l iabi l i ties , excluding loans

and borrowings, class i fied as  financial  l iabi l i ties  and measured at amortised cost i s  shown in note 3. 

 

 18.  Provisions 

  Group Company Group Company 
  2025 2025 2024 2024 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Di lapidations  provis ion 155 25 148 68 
Suppl ier charges  provis ion 140 - - - 
Total 295 25 148 68 

 

The di lapidation provis ion is  for the estimated aggregate cost of returning the Group's  offices  to their original  condition on

the expiry and exit of the property leases. Currently the leases  extend to between 2026 and 2028.  

 

The suppl ier charges  provis ion relates  to i tems in dispute for which the Company is  actively seeking settlement and

recovery of any fees  paid.  Any cash outflow is  expected in the forthcoming year.  

 

19.  Loans and borrowings 

  Group Company Group Company 

  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Non- current £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Lease l iabi l i ties  180 - 400 49 
Bank loan 4,770 4,770 4,738 4,738 

 Total 4,950 4,770 5,138 4,787 

          

  Group Company Group Company 

  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Current £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Lease l iabi l i ties  189 45 204 43 
Bank loan - - - - 
Total  189 45 204 43 

 

The Company has  an RCF banking faci l i ty with a  term of five years  to Apri l  2027, an interest rate of Base Rate +3.25%

margin on drawn funds and covenants  that wi l l  be tested quarterly relating to total  net debt to Adjusted EBITDA leverage

and minimum l iquidity. The Group drew down £4.5m of RCF funds  for the Truststream acquis i tion in Apri l  2022. 

 

 20.  Contract liabilities 

  Group Company Group Company 

  2025 2025 2024 2024 
Contract l iabi l i ties  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Current - contract l iabi l i ties  2,075 - 2,635 - 
Non-current - contract
l iabi l i ties  

1,649 - 143 - 

 Total 3,724 - 2,778 - 

 

21.  Share capital  

Group and Company Number £'000 
Al lotted, cal led up and ful ly paid ordinary shares  of £0.01
each 
 

    
At 1 Apri l  2023 49,419,690 494 
Issue of share capital  2,076,394 21 



Issue of share capital  2,076,394 21 
At 31 March 2024 51,496,084 515 
Issue of share capital  34,019,007 340 
At 31 March 2025 85,515,091 855 

 

22.  Reconciliation of net cash flow movements in net debt 

 

  1 Apri l
2024 

Non cash flow
movements  Cash flow 

Right of use
Movement 

Maturi ty
reclass  

31 March
2025 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,943 - 6,798 - - 8,741 
Debt due in less than one
year: 
Bank loans  - 
Contingent cons ideration (1,751) (80) 1,831 - - - 
Deferred cons ideration - (127) 32 - - (95) 
Lease l iabi l i ties  (204) 52 183 - (220) (189) 
Debt due in more than one
year 
Bank loans  (4,738) (470) 438 - - (4,770) 
Contingent cons ideration - - - - - - 
Lease l iabi l i ties  (400) - - - 220 (180) 
Net cash/(debt) (5,150) (625) 9,282 - - 3,507 
 

The maturi ty reclass  movements  show the change in class ifica#on of the debt i tem maturi ty periods  due to contractual

changes  or new contracts  incepted in the year. 

 

23.  Related party transactions 

Transactions  between the Company and i ts  subs idiaries , which are related parties  of the Company, have been el iminated

on consol idation and are not disclosed in this  note. Detai ls  of the transactions  between the Group and other related

parties  are disclosed below: 

  

Arete Capital  Partners , a  Company of which Mike Fletcher (Non-Executive Director) i s  a  partner, invoiced SysGroup plc

£1,228 (2024: £420) for a  shared cost of corporate services  received by SysGroup plc and Arete Capital  Partners . At 31

March 2025, the balance outstanding was £Ni l  (31 March 2024: £Ni l ). 

 

24.  Ultimate controlling party 

 

The Directors  cons ider the Group and Company have no control l ing shareholder and no ultimate control l ing party. 

 

25.  Contingent asset 

 

As  disclosed in note 8 the Group has  incurred £0.50m (FY24: £0.43m) in relation to charges  in dispute with a  third-party

suppl ier over the past two financial  periods, which the Group is  actively seeking recovery of. The Group cons iders  the

probabi l i ty of recovery of the charges  as  poss ible. As  the recovery is  not vi rtual ly certain, an asset has  not been recorded

on the balance sheet. 
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